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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

| am pleased to report that 2005 represented a remarkable year for the
Group. We managed to sustain an encouraging and remarkably strong
financial performance while building important business foundations
for the years to come.

During the year the Group made substantial progress in consolidating
its credit card business and travel businesses to become a truly integrated
travel and financial group. The Group undertook a series of mergers
and acquisitions and business restructuring exercises which included
the purchase of 60% interests in Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd, a travel
company in Singapore. The Group formed Hong Kong Xpress Travel
Limited, a licensed travel agent in Hong Kong. The Group also completed
a reorganisation which resulted in Online Credit Card Limited becoming
a subsidiary of China Xpress Pte Ltd. and acquired of 45.6% interests
in Futuristic Group Ltd, a company incorporated in Singapore with its
shares listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited,
through the conversion of a convertible bond and options held by the
Group.

This year the Group recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$820.0 million, representing an increase of 46.1% from HK$561.1
million for the previous year. The loss attributable to shareholders for
the year ended March 31, 2005 was HK$12.9 million when compared
with HK$108.8 million in 2004.

To facilitate continuing expansion, the Group acquired a new office
premises during the year for approximately HK$49.5 million. As at
March 31, 2005, this premise was revalued by an independent
professional valuer at value of HK$80 million.

CHINA XPRESS PTE. LTD.

In taking steps to become an integrated travel and financial group,
China Xpress Pte. Ltd. (“China Xpress”) now houses the Group’s credit
card businesses and travel-related businesses including Online Credit
Card Limited, Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd. and Skywest Limited. China
Xpress’ assets now span credit card operations, travel agencies and
airlines.

China Xpress — Credit Card Operations  Online Credit Card Limited

During the year, positive external economic factors facilitated the steady
recovery of the economy. Employment and consumer spending resumed
growth as the business and investment environment continued to
improve. The Group recovered bad debts of HK$27.6 million and the
Credit Card business recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$13.2 million, representing a decrease of 23.8% from 2004.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT - continued

CHINA XPRESS PTE. LTD. - continued

We were able to benefit from the economic rebound and improvement
in the labour market and ran continuous sales and marketing programs.
As a result of our efforts we experienced a significant expansion in our
customer base and received the MasterCard International award for
“The Highest Growth Rate In 2004 Number of Open Cards in Hong
Kong — 2nd Runner Up”. Nevertheless, competition for consumer finance
intensified further amongst market players which led to a decrease in
our net interest income.

The Group is pursuing expansion of its credit card logistics/processing
services into the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) by marketing tailor-
made, turn-key, full-service credit card issuance, processing and logistics
services to PRC companies, especially financial institutions, such as
banks and insurance companies.

China Xpress — Travel Agency Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd.

In October 2004, the Group acquired 60% of the issued share capital
of Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd. (“Anglo-French”), a Singapore company
which focuses on corporate travel for small and medium enterprises,
government statutory boards, multinational and global companies,
leisure travel including land packages and tours, “MICE” (Meetings —
Incentives — Conventions — Exhibitions) and wholesale agent airline
ticketing businesses. Anglo-French ranked number 11 amongst 209
Billing and Settlement Plan Agents in Singapore (source: IATA). This
ranking includes corporate ticketing, leisure, “MICE” and wholesale
agents. Anglo-French has received numerous accolades and awards
such as:

1996
National Training Award — SME Category
. Singapore Productivity & Standards Board (PSB)

1997
Travel Agency of the Year — Outbound
o Singapore Tourism Board (STB)

1998
ISO 9002 Certification
. Llyod McGill

2000 & 2001

Tourism Host of the Year

. Singapore Tourism Board (STB)

2003

SO 9001:2000 for Quality Management System
. BSI Management Systems

BV S

CHINA XPRESS PTE. LTD.— #

A AT A AR i S T 8 ok
i o Sl A A A AT B B T 3 R R e i
T AR SR T AN B 85 00 > % 5 R R R R
N7 S T R R 2 [ R R AR
FHRHE R R R R H#

ERGWNUREIR A A e i i I
5 > S HOA SR RSO R D

$%§Ifﬁfb}£ ] rh 2 N RAE AN ([
B 1) 2% F] - O SRAT R AR B A ] A B
PR > FE B B AT G 2 A A R AR B
o I e A% B A R I T R 2 A R
&%), RS

China Xpress—
Jifé 0 4R PR

Anglo-French
Travel Pte Ltd.

T AR A A A SR E R Anglo-
French Travel Pte Ltd. ([ Anglo-French])
B AT A 60% > #ZH7 I 2 Al R
/N A 36~ BUR % 5 MM B8 B % B R
A 2 2% R iR 5 Al 5 R MR AT 4 T
ik A 5 R BE % 88 ) ik 2 (T MICE])
(Meetings — Incentives — Conventions —
Exhibitions) L Jz &8 §§ 1% 52 2 5 - Anglo-
French i il 3 209 5% 5% 85 S 4% 3 AC 3 o
PEA O CEORAR IR IATA) > A7 Bl DF 4
A5 2> 7] S8~ I A TMICE] R 48 85 £
B o Anglo-French® 44 2 TH Bk 4% o 42 74 »
il -

—AHE

National Training Award — SME Category (4= &

BERIR 88 — N AL

. Singapore Productivity & Standards
Board (PSB) (G fi ¢ /& 7 7 f&y)

— UL

Travel Agency of the Year— Outbound (4 4 i

G K 8E)

. Singapore Tourism Board (STB) (7 /il
Tk At JR) )

— LN
[SO 9002 Certification (ISO 90028 #% )
. Llyod McGill

CEETER LT

Tourism Host of the Year (2 4 Jif¢ # & HE# #)

. Singapore Tourism Board (STB) (/i
it 12 J&j )

.

[SO 9001:2000 for Quality Management System
(15O 9001:20004 B & M & #t)

. BSI Management Systems



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT - continued

CHINA XPRESS PTE. LTD. - continued

During the year, Anglo-French contributed HK$216.7 million to the
Group’s turnover, and HK$3.7 million to the Group’s loss from
operations.

China Xpress — Airline Investments Skywest Limited

During the year, the Group, and its affiliated companies acquired a
16.0% equity stake (which subsequently increased to 20% after the
year end date) in Skywest Limited (“Skywest”), an Australia listed
company and became the second largest shareholder in Skywest.
Skywest is one of Australia’s largest and longest established regional
airlines, meeting the transport needs of millions of Western Australians,
as well as domestic and international tourists for more than 40 years.
Skywest is the major regional airline in Western Australia, providing
scheduled services to sixteen destinations, covering Albany, Argyle,
Broome, Darwin, Esperance, Geraldton, Carnarvon, Exmouth, Kalgoorlie,
Karratha, Kununurra, Newman, Leinster, Leonaora and Port Hedland.
Skywest also provides many connector services, Broome - Darwin,
Exmouth - Broome, Carnarvon - Exmouth and Port Healand - Karratha.
The airline operates a once-weekly services linking the Pilbara to Bali.
Skywest's regional charter service caters for the specific needs of
government, corporate and mining and resources clients, requiring
charter aircraft to the state's most remote locations. Our strategic
investment in this key Australian carrier establishes a platform for co-
operation on a number of commercial fronts and creates the opportunity
to strengthen network connections in Singapore, Australia, Hong Kong
and the PRC.

FUTURISTIC GROUP LTD.

The interior fit-out business is operated through Futuristic Group Ltd.
(“Futuristic”), the Group’s Singapore listed associate, of which as at
March 31, 2005, the Group held a 45.6% interest in. Futuristic is an
award-winning, leading interior fit-out and store fixtures specialist. It
provides high-end store fixtures to high-profile and Fortune 500 clients
and also manufactures other fixture products of the highest quality for
export around the world. Futuristic is headquartered in Singapore with
offices in Malaysia and PRC, and partners in North America, Taiwan
and Australia.

To position itself for the potential growth in its store fixtures specialist
business, Futuristic has incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary,
Futuristic Store Fixtures International Pte Ltd to focus on this growing
market segment. This new company, which celebrated its official launch
in June 2005, will help focus its energies and resources on the huge
global market for store fixtures.

In 2005, Futuristic expanded into the businesses of securities trading,
financial, investments, consultancy and funding services.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT - continued

NOVENA HOLDINGS LIMITED

By the end of the year in review, the Group held a 10% strategic
equity stake in Novena Holdings Limited (“Novena”). Novena is a
Singapore listed company that is a well-established consumer lifestyle
player in the furniture and beauty industries. Its range of furniture,
marketed under the brands Novena, Modern Living, Castilla, The White
Collection and Natural Living, caters to the needs of different consumer
lifestyles. Meanwhile, Novena’s comprehensive range of beauty products
and services, typically beauty and personal care items, are marketed
under the household names of Leewah Beauty and NC. Over the years,
Novena has received numerous awards which is a recognition of their
superior business operations. These include the prestigious Superbrands
Award which recognizes some of the world’s greatest brands and the
Singapore Promising Brand Award which recognizes SMEs which have
shown outstanding performance in brand communication. Novena strives
to continuously upgrade its production and merchandising values in
order to provide the best retail experience, products and services.

GLOBAL MED TECHNOLOGIES INC.

The health care business is operated through Global Med Technologies
Inc. (“Global Med”), the Group’s U.S. listed subsidiary, of which as at
March 31, 2005, the Group holds a 40.5% interest in. The Group’s
health care business recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$53.6 million and operating losses of approximately HK$8.8 million.

Global Med is an international e-Health, medical information technology
company, providing information management software products and
services to the healthcare industry. Its Wyndgate Technologies division
is a leading supplier of information management systems to U.S. and
international blood centers and hospital transfusion centers. Current
clients of Wyndgate’s products and services manage more than 3 million
units of blood, or over 22% of the U.S. blood supply, each year. In the
last 12-months Global Med secured a US$8 million equity commitment
and reached an installation milestone of over 300 facilities.
Internationally, it announced the second African blood center installation
and completed its first Canadian customer installation launch.
Wyndgate’s products are now being implemented in the U.S., Canada,
the Caribbean and sub-Saharan Africa.

FINANCIAL AND SECURITIES INVESTMENT

The financial and securities investment division of the Group recorded
a turnover of approximately HK$533.2 million for the year ended March
31, 2005, representing an increase of 8.7% from HK$490.6 million for
the previous year. The financial and securities investment division
recorded an operating profit of HK$23.8 million as compared to a loss
of HK$74.6 million in 2004. During the year, the Group completed the
disposal of its entire interest in China Gas Holdings Limited.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT - continued

OUTLOOK

It is our business strategy to continue to focus on the financial and
securities investment businesses including securities trading, corporate
finance, consumer finance and the credit card business and to continue
to expand our travel, hospitality and aviation related businesses. We
will continue to introduce reputable strategic partners to create
opportunities to enlarge the credit card customer base, enhance the
Group’s business connections, and build on our brand name and
international recognition and to acquire more travel service companies
and airline companies with an aim to build globally branded, PRC
focused international credit card and travel services for PRC banks,
and PRC state-owned and global travel companies.

The year ahead will be an optimistic year for credit card businesses.
With the growth in consumer spending and borrowing together with
the expected increase in job and investment opportunities in the market,
the demand for consumer loans will continue to increase. In light of
the drop in the unemployment rate of our market segment and the
declining trend of personal bankruptcies, the Group will undertake a
more aggressive marketing strategy to grow its principal business and
launch a series of new loyalty card products participate in the Xpress
Miles™ rewards program, such as “Bon Appetit Club” loyalty card
program.

The Group’s business direction includes diversification of country risk
through the expansion and development of its existing businesses in
corporate finance, consumer finance, credit cards, and travel related
activity outside of Hong Kong with a strong focus on Singapore and the
PRC. The goal of the Group is to fully leverage its various brandings, to
consolidate internal and external resources and to augment reform efforts
in order to enhance its competitiveness in the Singapore, PRC and
international markets, so as to become an international and modernized
travel service group.

The Group maintained a very strong cash position throughout the year
and had a cash balance of over HK$69.6 million as at March 31, 2005.
This advantage, together with the continued growth of our core business
and prudent investment strategies, makes us highly competitive. We
are optimistic about our future. Through effective utilisation of our
capital, we will expand and extend our business in the years to come.
In the coming year, the Group intends to further create greater synergies
among the strategic partners, such as Futuristic, Novena and Skywest,
in order to maximise its competitive advantages in large scale operations
and services.

BV S

Jé 8l

7 B [ 6 B R A A S R 4 A R
FFBUEER > B HE  DERE T
B 05 48 AR R 3605 - 3l A A 1 i 20
TR L 22 A B SE 5 - A 42 JBH M A S A
ELRWEEBE BRREHREFE
B ~ 30 56 A 4 ] SE B g R DL R S A A
sl WL % B [ R0 45 E A B I WO 2
i e 5 2 ) B 2 O ) B R B Y
SRAT ~ v A S 4 B R Al % ] B AR A R
R4~ 3 e bR R AS R R 2B
o

A4 B R — AR I 05 R SE RS T (R
o B B RS BRI BT
eV Era g Sepia-n DI RRGE €04
SO 5 A8 1 T o bl A 4R [ BT B T 45 03 T
LR FEATN e A B R SR 2
e A A JE S SRR B AFE AT T 05 o R
DAgE R H 2385 Wt — RAUB & B
o 25 BT 2 o | S S A [ R
LRI RAE K

7 45 [ 36 B U7 1) B 455 928 o 4R HP ORI 35
B v 180 56 7 vl LA A0 b [ - R 7S R A
Tl 9 2 AR 5 T R ROk AR B S
S BUA JEH > 2 WO L F o A 4R B B AR
T A RG22 0 R B AN TR
1405 G O (SR 2 A T L7 e S N
B T 8 2 WEE 00 DL B BUAR AL A R
i 4 i s 4 18 2 5 -

A AT RNB AR — E AR
EEAFEZA=Z+—H - AEBEHREL
4818 69,600,000 7T o S Z N A 4
B A% O E T A R ROEAT R E R
W& AN B BT A TR o AR R EE R
KA ARG L - BREHEHES A
B2 [ 51 A R 2l 1 R % M T 2 A I o ok
B AR E ] — 4 B Futuristic ~ £
R4 BB B Skywest 35 SR & & VE % 11 Al &
K 1R 2 25 - 5 SRR R Y S R R % 2
BB



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT - continued

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank the members of the Board for their guidance and
to extend my appreciation to the management and staff for their
continued dedication and hard work.

By Order of the Board

CHAN HENG FAI
Managing Chairman
Hong Kong, July 26, 2005
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$819,777,000 for
the year ended March 31, 2005, representing an increase of
approximately 46.1% as compared to the year ended March 31, 2004.
The increase in turnover was mainly due to increases in securities
trading and investments and the consolidated effect of the newly
acquired travel business which contributed HK$216,719,000 to the
Group’s turnover. The loss attributable to shareholders for the year
ended March 31, 2005 was approximately HK$12,920,000 as compared
to the loss of approximately HK$108,838,000 in 2004.

The loss per share for the year was HK0.81 cents when compared with
HK7.29 cents in last year.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

During the period under review, the Company raised approximately
HK$14,034,000 from the exercise of warrants resulting in the issue of
approximately 108 million shares. Bank balance and cash amounted to
approximately HK$69,616,000 (3.31.2004: HK$144,311,000).

As at March 31, 2005, the Group’s current ratio was 3.1 (3.31.2004:
7.7). Gearing ratio, defined as the ratio of total borrowings less cash
balances to total assets, was maintained at a healthy level of 16.7% as
at the year ended March 31, 2005 as compared to net cash position for
the last year.

Capital commitments in respect of the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment not provided in the financial statements as at March
31, 2005 was HK$8,694,000 (3.31.2004: HK$43,033,000).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

During the year, the Group disposed its entire interests in an associate,
China EnerSave Limited (formerly known as EnerSave Holdings Limited),
a company incorporated in Singapore and its shares are listed on The
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and acquired 45.6%
interests in Futuristic Group Ltd. through conversion of the convertible
bond and options held by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
— continued

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS - continued

In October 2004, the Group acquired 60% of the issued share capital
of Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd. which is primarily a business travel
management company focusing on corporate travel for small and
medium enterprises, government statutory boards, multinational and
global companies.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Substantially all the revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, U.S. dollars, Canadian dollars and
Singapore dollars. Due to the currency peg of the Hong Kong dollars to
the U.S. dollars, the exchange rate between these two currencies has
remained stable and thus no hedging or other alternatives have been
implemented by the Group. The Group expected that there is no
significant exposure on foreign currency, but it cannot be assured
operating results in future will not be materially affected.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s credit policy defines the credit extension criteria, the credit
approval and monitoring processes, and the loan provisioning policy.
The Group maintains tight control on loan assessments and approvals
and will continue to exercise a conservative and prudent policy in
granting loans in order to maintain a quality loan portfolio and manage
the credit risk exposure of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Remuneration packages are generally structured by reference to
prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries and wages
are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors. Apart from salary payments, there
are other staff benefits including provident fund, medical insurance
and performance related bonus. At the balance sheet date, there were
approximately 200 employees employed by the Group. Share options
may also be granted to eligible employees and persons of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
— continued

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had pledged bank balances of
HK$4,121,000 as a security for banking facilities granted to a subsidiary
and as securities for the credit card business transactions with
MasterCard International Inc. The mortgage loans of HK$41,446,000
were secured on the investment properties and land and buildings of
the Group with carrying values of HK$21,119,000 and HK$48,526,000
respectively. Bank borrowings of HK$83,151,000 is secured on
investments in securities and bank balances with a carrying values of
HK$3,883,000 and HK$63,655,000 respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has given guarantees to a
financial institution in respect of banking facilities granted to a
the Group’s supplier of the Group of HK$10,053,000.

At the balance sheet date, the Company has given guarantees to
a financial institution in respect of banking facilities granted to
subsidiaries of HK$37,064,000.

Actions were brought by Pricerite Stores Limited and Pricerite
Group Limited respectively, against a subsidiary of the Company,
in respect of the alleged breach of agreement for damages which
are not quantified. In the opinion of the directors, it is not
practicable at this stage to determine with certainty the outcome
of the litigation.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Brief biographical information of the directors and senior management
of the Group are as follows:

DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Heng Fai, aged 60, is the Managing Chairman of the Company.
He has been a director of the Company since September 1992. Mr.
Chan is responsible for the overall business development of the Group.
His experience and expertise are in the finance and banking sectors.
He is the spouse of Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

Mr. Chan Tong Wan, Tony, aged 30, is the Managing Director of the
Company. Mr. Chan began his career by working in two international
companies as an investment banker specialising in Asian equity financial
products. Subsequently, Mr. Chan worked for a finance and technology
company in the United States as the Chief Operating Officer with a
focus on its investment banking and merchant banking activities. Mr.
Chan joined the Group as a non-executive director in January 2000,
was appointed as an executive director in September 2002 and was
appointed as Managing Director in August 2003. Mr. Chan holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree with honours, with a Finance
specialization, from the University of British Columbia. Mr. Chan is the
son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow, aged 56, has been a director of the Company
since January 1992. She is responsible for the general administration
and financial planning of the Group. She has over 25 years’ experience
in financial management and administration. Ms. Chan is a member of
the Hong Kong Securities Institute. She is the spouse of Mr. Chan Heng
Fai.

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann, aged 34, has been a director of the
Company since 1995. Ms. Chan is involved with the securities
operations. Ms. Chan has previous experience with one of the leading
banks in Hong Kong where she was involved in sales and marketing as
well as relationship management for the Regional Securities office. Ms.
Chan is the daughter of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen, aged 56. Appointed to the Board in 1995, Mr.
Fong is a non-executive director. Mr. Fong is a director of the law firm
of Fong Law Corporation. He was previously in the Legal Service of
Singapore where he served for 17 years till 1989 when he resigned to
join the private sector. He is a director of Capitacommercial Trust
Management Limited, GeneMedix plc, Global Med Technologies, Inc.
and WBL Corporation Limited. He also serves as the Chairman of the
SGX-ST Disciplinary Committee and had served 12 years at the
Securities Industry Council of Singapore.

Mr. Lee Ka Leung, Daniel, aged 47, is a certified public accountant
admitted to practise in Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee is currently the managing
partner of K.L. Lee & Partners C.P.A. Limited and KLL Associates CPA
Limited. Mr. Lee was appointed as an independent non-executive
director in October 1994.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT PROFILE - continued

DIRECTORS - continued

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter, aged 63, has over 31 years experience in the
fashion industry including distribution, sourcing, overseeing
manufacturing and exporting to international clients in France, the
United Kingdom, Germany and the United States. Mr. Wong was
appointed as an independent non-executive director in September 1998.

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo, aged 54, has over 20 years’ experience in
human resources, China trade and real estates industry. Mr. Da Roza
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in July 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Tung Moe, aged 26, the General Manager and a director of
Online Credit Card Limited (“OCCL”), is responsible for the overall
management of the card operation. Previously, Mr. Chan was in charge
of technical and business development for a finance and technology
company in the United States. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Applied
Science and a Master’s Degree in Electro-Mechanical Engineering. Mr.
Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

Mr. Chong You Hwa, Roger, 42, is the Information Technology Manager
of OCCL in charge of the information technology and electronic data
processing functions since October 1996. Prior to joining OCCL, Mr.
Chong has worked as Technical Services Section Head for a credit card
company in Malaysia. Mr. Chong has over 12 years system experience
in the credit card industry.

Mr. Lui Wai Leung, Alan, aged 34, is the Senior Accountant of the
Group. He is responsible for the financial reporting of the Group and
focus on the credit card business. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Business Administration and he joined the Group in 1997.

Mr. Ng Hin Chau, aged 44, is the administration manager of the Group.
Mr. Ng is responsible for the credit card operations of OCCL. Prior to
joining the Group in March 1995, Mr. Ng has 13 years banking
experience specializing in branch accounting, credit administration and
project financing in the PRC.

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung, aged 34, is the qualified accountant and Financial
Controller of the Group and responsible for the financial and
management reporting of the Group, including internal control and
policy review, taxation, audit, legal and regulatory affairs. He has over
12 years in public accounting, taxation, and financial consultancy and
management in Hong Kong. He worked with an international accounting
firm prior to joining the Group in 2001. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Business Administration and is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising). He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Securities
Institute.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT PROFILE - continued

SENIOR MANAGEMENT - continued

Mr. Yuen Ping Man, aged 41, is the Senior Manager-Corporate Services
of the Group responsible for the corporate secretarial function of the
Group and compliance, human resources, customer service and general
administration of OCCL. Mr. Yuen has over 15 years experience in
corporate secretarial, human resources and general administration. Prior
to joining OCCL in June 1997, Mr. Yuen worked in two listed groups
and a financial institution. Mr. Yuen holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and of the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries, a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute,
the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management and the Hong
Kong Institute of Purchasing & Supply and an associate member of
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong and Society of Registered
Financial Planners.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 46 and 47
respectively to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2005 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 32.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at March 31, 2005,
as set out in note 12 to the financial statements. The resulting surplus
arising on revaluation has been credited directly to the investment
property revaluation reserve and consolidated income statement with
an amount of HK$973,000 and HK$121,000 respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at
a cost of approximately HK$60 million. Details of these and other
movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Details of the major properties of the Group at March 31, 2005 are set
out on page 102.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Movements in the share capital and warrants of the Company are set
out in note 25 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the reserves of the Group and
the Company are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Chan Heng Fai

Chan Tong Wan

Chan Yoke Keow

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann

Non-executive director:
Fong Kwok Jen
Independent non-executive directors:

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel
Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Da Roza Joao Paulo (appointed on July 20, 2004)

Alternate directors:

Lau Kwok Fai (alternate to Chan Heng Fai)
Wooldridge Mark Dean (alternate to Fong Kwok Jen)

In accordance with Articles 78 and 79 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Fong Kwok Jen and Wong Dor Luk, Peter retire by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The term
of office of each non-executive director and independent non-executive
director is the period up to his retirement by rotation and each one of
them can be re-appointed in accordance with the above articles.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(M

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in shares and
underlying shares

At March 31, 2005, the interests of the directors and the chief
executives and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and convertible debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies were as follows:

Long positions

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

oW -

WAL

Name of director
Chan Heng Fai
It 1

Chan Yoke Keow
B T &

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann
B

Fong Kwok Jen
R 12 4

Chan Tong Wan

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
T Zwk

Da Roza Joao Paulo

52y

Capacity

Beneficial owner

HaHA A

Beneficial owner

Ham¥EA A

Held by trust (Note 1)

DI FEREA (BiF5ET)

Held by controlled
corporations (Note 2)

P 2 A m A (K aE2)

Beneficial owner
i A A

Held by spouse (Note 3)
F C A8 5 A (BRFE3)

Beneficial owner
HumfEA A

Beneficial owner
HumfEA A

Beneficial owner
HumfEA A

Beneficial owner
HumfEA A

Held by spouse (Note 4)
HEEEEA (FiEe)

PR % 2 B A
(1) E B AT BN BRI A K Ml
B JBe B 2 HE 2
A EERFE=A =+ —H #H
PEL T N VYL T T PN
R AR E B AR B 2 BB
A Bl Je 3 B AT B o o B AT
ﬁ%$®ﬁﬁ%%#&%ﬁ%%
it 7 M B R ) ) 5 3520 A7
EZ%E.:EHHZTE@ BRE LA
R O E AT R I 5 5 1 A R ST L
O 8 A 24 /] B o o W 28 o P
ARAR ZHERIT
WA
(@ AR AEREE.0THEITZ
W
P ol MiARAW OB
B W H B A H 4 b
Number Percentage of
of issued the issued
ordinary share capital
shares held  of the Company
%
129,726,225 7.98
31,437,275 1.93
59,733,600 3.67
573,558,425 35.27
664,729,300 40.87
25,650 -
3,416,000 0.21
3,441,650 0.21
3,828,000 0.24
5,252,150 0.32
280,000 0.02
4,800 -
460,000 0.03
464,800 0.03
807,722,125 49.67




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES - continued

M

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in shares and
underlying shares - continued

oW -

R R 2 HE A —
(1) H R AT BN FUR B Ay K i

Long positions — continued

(b) Share options
wALEH 55
Name of director Capacity

Chan Heng Fai
RN

Chan Yoke Keow
B 4

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann

BB

Fong Kwok Jen

Ji 4 1

Chan Tong Wan

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel
FHR

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
T L%k

Beneficial owner

B A A

Beneficial owner

B A A

Beneficial owner

B A A

Beneficial owner

B A A

Beneficial owner

B A A

Beneficial owner

B A A

Beneficial owner

B A A

B JBe By 2 i 2 — il
A —
(b)  HEACHE
J9t K5 J0% JBe ik % H B ey ¥ H
Number of
Number of underlying
options held shares
162,000,000 162,000,000
50,000,000 50,000,000
5,000,000 5,000,000
8,000,000 8,000,000
15,000,000 15,000,000
3,000,000 3,000,000
3,000,000 3,000,000
246,000,000 246,000,000




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES - continued

M

Directors’

underlying shares — continued

Long positions — continued

(c)

Warrants

HARE A

Name of director

Chan Heng Fai
RN

Chan Yoke Keow
B 4

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann
8 g=)

Fong Kwok Jen

Sl 6 4

Chan Tong Wan
i A

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
EZ ¥

Da Roza Joao Paulo

and chief executives’

interests in shares and

55

Capacity

Beneficial owner

B A A

Beneficial owner

Ha A A

Held by trust (Note 1)

UG REFE A (BT aET)

Held by controlled
corporations (Note 2)

P fE il 2 2~ wL A (B RE2)

Beneficial owner
HalEa AN

Held by spouse (Note 3)
M B AR AR (B GE3)

Beneficial owner

B A A

Beneficial owner

B A A

Beneficial owner

B A A

Beneficial owner
Ham¥EA A

Held by spouse (Note 4)
AR (M EE4)
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(1) H R AT BN FUR B Ay K i

B Bt By =2 HE 2% — f
1A —
(c) PR HER
P ¥ 2 I B A B s By e H
H Number of
Number of underlying
warrants held shares
12,102,244 12,102,244
4,392,927 4,392,927
11,946,720 11,946,720
62,093,447 62,093,447
78,433,094 78,433,094
5,129 5,129
683,200 683,200
688,329 688,329
765,600 765,600
1,039,989 1,039,989
56,000 56,000
960 960
92,000 92,000
92,960 92,960
93,178,216 93,178,216




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES - continued

(M

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in shares and
underlying shares — continued

Long positions — continued

(c)

Warrants — continued

These shares and warrants are owned by a discretionary trust,
HSBC Trust (Cook Island) Limited. Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow (“Mrs.
Chan”) is one of the discretionary objects.

These shares and warrants are owned by First Pacific International
Limited and Prime Star Group Co. Ltd., in which Mrs. Chan has
100% equity interests.

These shares and warrants are owned by Mr. Wooldridge Mark
Dean, the spouse of Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann.

These shares and warrants are owned by Ms. Josephina B. Ozorio,
the spouse of Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo.

Shares in subsidiaries
At March 31, 2005, the following directors held interests

in the shares of certain subsidiaries of the Company as
follows:

Global Med Technologies, Inc. (“Global Med”)

Chan Heng Fai o 1 HEE
Chan Yoke Keow (a5
Fong Kwok Jen Ji 2Rl A
PeopleMed.com, Inc.

Chan Heng Fai ok
Chan Yoke Keow [
Chan Tong Wan bR #5t 2E
Fong Kwok Jen AP 1 451

Note: These shares are owned by Mr. Chan Heng Fai (“Mr.

Chan”), the spouse of Mrs. Chan.

oW -

PR % Z B AR —

(1)

g B AT BN BOR BBy B

B JBe By 2 i 2 — 4

HH—

i

8 B HE R — A

R I R R R —TH A
HE {5 5EHSBC Trust (Cook
Island) Limited ¥ 4 > 1fi B F I
Zt ([ +]) T HEE
ZRWANZ o

5 M Ay B R B HE R R 4
A 100%M A5 #E 45 2 First
Pacific International Limited &
Prime Star Group Co. Ltd #Ef7 °

% S5 B Ay B P E R OB E
7+ Z W A% Wooldridge Mark
Dean’cEHEF -

5% W B wR K ORE R B Da
Roza Joao Paulo’t 4 2 it 1@
Josephina B. OzorioZ +-#Ef »

B 2 ) 2 £
RoEFERE=A =
H o BLF 3 3R A 7 T
A2 R 2
NF:

Global Med Technologies,
Inc. ([ Global Med])

Pt K5 35 7 1B ¥ H

Number of ordinary shares held
PN £y
Personal Family
interests interests
29,715 -

- 29,715 (Fff &%)
(Note)
22,285 -

100,000

PeopleMed.com, Inc.

- 100,000 (B &%)

25,000

25,000

(Note)

i R O N ] T
A8 [l 1E SR AR (T BRSE

) BRA -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES - continued

(2

Options

Particulars of the Company’s and subsidiaries’ share option
schemes are set out in note 42 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share
options in issue during the year:

Old Share Option Scheme

f R34

Name of director

Category 1: Directors

Mr. Chan

Mrs. Chan

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann

Total for directors
Category 2: Employees
Total for employees

Total for all categories

Bilam
Date granted

Bk

[ §ika 4.22.1996
5.15.1997
10.26.1997

Bht 4.22.1996
5.15.1997
10.26.1997

BRI A 10.26.1997

HEAY

PR REAR

1§ B 4H 5.15.1997

T H B A%

WP AT B

Exercisable period

4.22.1996 - 4.21.2006
5.15.1997 - 5.14.2007
10.26.1997 - 10.25.2007

4.22.1996 - 4.21.2006
5.15.1997 - 5.14.2007
10.26.1997 - 10.25.2007

10.26.1997 - 10.25.2007

5.15.1997 - 5.14.2007

At March 31, 2004, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Old Share Option Scheme was 71,491,739, representing 4.7%
of the share of the Company in issue at that date.

oW -

PR % Z B AR -

(2)

BB A BT
Exercise
price

per share
T

HK$

0.4025
0.4512
0.3064

0.4025
0.4512
0.3064

0.3064

0.4512

Jik I i

AN T K W o w2 A
GRIEEISUE S E IRV

TRWEARFANRFRNCETZ
Fl 52 HEE A

5 0 DB HE it 2
REZENE REFRIE
MA—H ZAZ+-H
WAME  FREE WRITH
Outstanding Cancelled  Outstanding
at during at
4.1.2004 the year 3.31.2005
1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
6,660,000  (6,660,000) -
14,400,000  (14,400,000) -
2,071,739 (2,071,739) -
6,660,000  (6,660,000) -
14,400,000  (14,400,000) -
25,000,000  (25,000,000) -
70,191,739 (70,191,739) -
1,300,000 (1,300,000) -
71,491,739 (71,491,739) -

ROEENE=ZA=+—H R
BE I A S B 2B EAT AR 0 R
T2 BEREREY R 2 By 8 EH B
71,491,739 - KR AR RZH 2
AT IRAR4.7% ©



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES - continued

(2)

Options - continued

New Share Option Scheme

f ¥

Name of director

Category 1: Directors

Mr. Chan

Mrs. Chan

Chan Tong Wan

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann
Fong Kwok Jen

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel
Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Total for directors
Category 2: Employees
Total for employees

Total for all categories

ghnm
Date granted
R Bt
Rt 11.1.2004
11.15.2004
Wot 11.1.2004
11.15.2004
R4 E 11.15.2004
B A 11.15.2004
HEn 11.15.2004
VL 11.15.2004
I5% 11.15.2004
54
BN A
B &A%Y 11.15.2004
FRERNAY

[Rgir 2]

Exercisable period

11.1.2004 - 5.8.2013
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

11.1.2004 - 5.8.2013
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

TR B
Exercise
price

per share
i

HK$

0.1600
0.1616

0.1600
0.1616

0.1616
0.1616
0.1616
0.1616

0.1616

0.1616

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before
November 1, 2004 and November 15, 2004, the dates on which
the share options were granted, were both HK$0.16.

At March 31, 2005, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
New Share Option Scheme was 281,500,000, representing 17.3%
of the share of the Company in issue at that date.

oW -

PR % Z B AR -

(2 B — A
W il B it )

REFEWE REZFLE
WA ZAZEF-H
WAL FERRE EREE WAL

Outstanding Granted  Cancelled  Outstanding

at during during at

4.1.2004 the year the year  3.31.2005
Ly
HK§

- 15,000,000 - 15,000,000

- 147,000,000 - 147,000,000

- 15,000,000 - 15,000,000

- 35,000,000 - 35,000,000

- 15,000,000 - 15,000,000

- 5,000,000 - 5,000,000

- 8,000,000 - 8,000,000

- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000

- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000

246,000,000 246,000,000

~ 40,000,000 (4,500,000) 35,500,000

~ 286,000,000 (4,500,000) 281,500,000

AN TR N B R A+ —
A—HER_-ZENE+—HA+HH
(M e B 2 iy
£50. 16 T

R oEERFE=ZH=1+—H W
S S R T ) 2 B B R AR W SR AT
2 BEREY k2 BB A
281,500,000 - (5 A A FR#%H Z
BT RAR17.3% o



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES - continued

(2)

Options - continued

In addition, details of outstanding options to subscribe for shares
in the capital of certain subsidiaries of the Company, granted to
certain directors of the Company under the share option schemes
of these subsidiaries were as follows:

(i) eBanker USA.com, Inc. (“eBanker”)

The following table presents details of share options in
issue during the year.

Category 1: Directors it B &
Mr. Chan e

Fong Kwok Jen T 1 451

Total held by directors TR A
Category 2: Employees 5 e B
Total held by employees 1 B Fr £ 48 81
Total At

There was no movement in the share options granted by
eBanker during the year.

oW -

AR Z hE AR — A
(2 B — A

BESh > AT AT 8 A 28 /) o 1 B
O F) WA A 2 A AT B
1 AR R % 5 T B 2% W) 2 I b
AR T AL F S T HE S G W

T
(i) eBanker USA.com, Inc.
(leBanker/)
TRIVENCT BT
GRIE
BRI
ZA=Z+F—H2
5 e 47 B £ Jik DB M % H
Number of
Exercise share options
price per share at 3.31.2005
%It
uss$
3.00 500,000
3.00 100,000
600,000
3.00 20,000

620,000

eBanker#% i 2 I I RE 7L 4F
A Slf7 482 AT 0] 4% o) o



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES - continued

(2)

Options - continued

(ii)

Global Med

The following table presents the activity for options for

the year ended and as of March 31, 2005:

Category 1: Directors
Mr. Chan

Chan Tong Wan
Fong Kwok Jen

Total held by directors
Category 2: Employees
Total held by employees

Total

Outstanding, beginning of year
Exercised

Granted

Forfeited/cancelled

Outstanding, end of year

W
PR
PR A5
Ji 28 A1
SR UERE S
R A
18 B 5 5 A 8

At

AR W AR AT
(EREd
=
C ¥k 5 8

AW R AT

oW -

PR % Z B AR -

(2)

Jie I i — #

(ii) Clobal Med

TRIIEREREE T
HE=ZA=+—HI1LFE K
% H I

)/ 2 T 2
ZA=Z+—H2
5 Jbe A7 1 45 Yl I i e H
Number of
Exercise share options
price per share at 3.31.2005
eI
Uss$
0.75 150,000
0.66 50,000
0.75 75,000
275,000
0.78 8,824,442
9,099,442
W It i e
Options Price*
eV
uss$
8,754,942 0.76
(245,000) 0.72
750,000 1.05
(160,500) 0.69

9,099,442 0.78



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES - continued

(2)

Options - continued

(ii)

Global Med — continued

The following table presents the composition of options
outstanding and exercisable as of March 31, 2005:

oW -

AR Z hE AR — A
Yol B i — 45

(2)

(ii)

£+

Life*

8.0
5.4
3.2
2.7
2.0
1.3

5.3

Global Med— #i

TREIR -FFLFE=A
=+ — H R LA AT
o S PR 2 17 L -

LEgigid s &

Exercisable Options*

Ji b H o H e~
Number of

options Price*
eV
uss$
62,000 0.49
6,112,164 0.67
302,332 1.18
321,694 1.78
210,750 2.51
13,500 3.75
7,022,440 0.80

1 A AT B D e
Options Outstanding
A7 0 A Jit 6L HE S H e >
Number of

Range of exercise price options Price*
e %t

Us$ us$
0.45-0.55 194,000 0.47
0.56-1.00 7,638,498 0.65
1.01-1.50 729,000 1.29
1.51-2.00 313,694 1.78
2.45-3.00 210,750 2.51

3.75 13,500 3.75
Rt

Total 9,099,442 0.78

* Price and life reflect the weighted average exercise price

and weighted average remaining contractual life
respectively.

# Options granted under the share of option scheme of
Global Med vest on a straight-line basis, based on
schedules as determined by the board of directors of
Global Med upon grant.

The fair value of the options in the Company and Global
Med granted during the year are not disclosed as in the
opinion of the directors, certain assumptions needed to
derive the fair value using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model cannot be reasonably determined.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

* 167 15 J £F H 23 7 15 10 HE
FEGFT (A8 e I T 2

# R#EClobal Med i Ht 1#
Ft & 7 H 2 R 1R
Global Med# % & j# £
MR 2 R L E
AR B G o

B M HIA RRE G B
1 T PR I AE ) 5 — & 30
SRERT AR AP T
it Z AR > N 5 AR A
& 2 & 2 Fl K Global
Med i Ji% HE 2~ - {H

B b SCH R A > A o m
FCAL AR B8 2 7107 4 AR A
I ] A 40 22 BRLAT o 4 B > 5K
o AR 2% ) ) RSO AR
GETIOE N YNEE: - P
17 B M5 25 T 2 4



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

(i)

On November 9, 1998, a service contract (“Service Contract”)
was entered into between the Company and Mr. Chan, for a
term of five years expiring on January 31, 2002. This Service
Contract superseded the prior service contract and the terms of
the Service Contract are deemed to have taken effect on February
1, 1997. On November 25, 2000, a supplementary agreement
was entered into between the Company and Mr. Chan for the
extension of the Service Contract for a period of three years
expiring on January 31, 2005.

Commencing from February 1, 1998 and up to January 31, 2005,
the Service Contract provides for the payment of a salary of the
greater of (a) an annual salary equal to 5.9% of the net assets
value of the Company as shown in its consolidated audited
accounts at each financial year end, or (b) 101% of the basic
salary for the immediately preceding year commencing from
February 1, 1997 to January 31, 1998. In addition, Mr. Chan is
also entitled to receive an accommodation allowance of
HK$30,000 per month.

On August 22, 2003, Mr. Chan submitted a “Voluntary
Undertaking to Reduce Basic Remuneration by Approximately
50% Effective August 1, 2003” (“Voluntary Reduction
Undertaking”) to the board of directors of the Company. This
Voluntary Reduction Undertaking, effective August 1, 2003,
through the remaining life of the Service Contract, voluntarily
amends the Service Contract by placing additional limits on Mr.
Chan’s remuneration, resulting in an immediate going-forward
reduction of approximately 50% in basic salary remuneration,
and requiring any additional remuneration to be subject to the
Company’s profit before taxation as shown in its consolidated
audited accounts at each financial year end. The Company will
not be obligated to remunerate Mr. Chan any more than would
be required under the Service Contract before this Voluntary
Reduction Undertaking.

In the event that the Company should terminate Mr. Chan’s
employment following the change of control of the Company, as
defined in the Service Contract, or for any reasons not specifically
excluded in the Service Contract, Mr. Chan shall be entitled to
receive as liquidated damages a lump sum equal to the sum
which would have been payable by the Company as gross salary
in respect of the unexpired term of the Service Contract on the
date notice of termination is given.
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(i)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS - continued

(ii)

On February 25, 2005, a new service contract (the “New Service
Contract”) was entered into between the Company and Mr. Chan,
for a term of three years expiring on January 31, 2008. The New
Service Contract provides for the payment of a salary of
HK$2,100,000 per month. In addition, Mr. Chan is also entitled
to receive an accommodation allowance of HK$30,000 per
month.

In the event that the Company should terminate Mr. Chan’s
employment following the change of control of the Company, as
defined in the New Service Contract, or for any reasons not
specifically excluded in the New Service Contract, Mr. Chan
shall be entitled to receive as liquidated damages a lump sum
equal to the sum which would have been payable by the
Company as gross salary (excluding bonus, if applicable), not to
exceed 12 months of salary, in respect of the unexpired term of
the New Service Contract on the date notice of termination is
given.

On April 22, 2002, a service contract was entered into between
the Company and Mrs. Chan for a term of 5 years expiring on
February 1, 2007. This service contract provides for the payment
of a salary of the greater of (a) an annual salary equal to 1% of
the net asset value of the Company as shown in its consolidated
audited accounts at each financial year end, or (b) 110% of the
basic salary as mentioned in the service contract with Mrs. Chan.
In addition, Mrs. Chan is also entitled to receive an
accommodation allowance of HK$30,000 per month. For a period
of 12 calendar months beginning May 1, 2002, Mrs. Chan
voluntarily received only 75% of the greater of (a) or (b) above.

In the event that the Company should terminate Mrs. Chan’s
employment following the change of control of the Company, as
defined in the service contract, or for any reasons not specifically
excluded in the service contract, Mrs. Chan shall be entitled to
receive as liquidated damages a lump sum equal to the sum
which would have been payable by the Company as gross salary
in respect of the unexpired term of the service contract on the
date notice of termination is given.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Other than certain transactions as disclosed in note 44 to the financial
statements, no other contract of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at March 31, 2005, according to the register of interest in shares
and underlying shares and short positions kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO and so far as is known to or can be ascertained
after reasonable enquiries by the directors, the persons (other than the
Directors of the Company or their respective associate) who were
interested in 5% or more in the issued share capital of the Company
are as follows:

o 06 Bl - s
AR A R B R 5 Z A

B B 5 ik 3R M RE 44 BB 2 5 T2 B b A
O T BCH AT ] B 2> R M BT S AT AT A
AR & R TGRS EER NG R DI
A H¢ BUAE A A AR IRE P AT 98 AR R HoAh R
HEH-

B2

WoRBTAEZA S+ AR A
LI 25 0 5 03360 47 2 M0
A B e 0 3 e T o
I 7 0 SR 45 3025 38 4l > F 91
IEREYEE L ST P2 TS
W) BT A2 7 B AT B A S s I
i3t

EY 7 R JBe O B A R By B H HAR
Number of shares and

Name underlying shares held %

Prime Star Group Co., Ltd. 516,732,825 31.78

First Pacific International Limited 118,919,047 7.31

Novena Furnishing Centre Pte Ltd. 92,472,000 5.69

Novena Holdings Limited (Note)#E i i 2 B 4 BR 2 &) (Bt 55) 92,472,000 5.69

Note: Novena Holdings Limited is deemed to be interested in 92,472,000

shares by virtue of its 100% equity interests in Novena Furnishing Centre
Pte Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, as at March 31, 2005, no person other than
the directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest of 5% or more in
the issued share capital of the Company, and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares that was required to be recorded in the
register of interest pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended March 31, 2005, the aggregate amount of turnover
and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers respectively accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
turnover and purchases.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

BRF&E = R 2B W6 A PR A F] A Novena

Furnishing Centre Pte Ltd.Z 100%/&
A2 H WAL 5572 92,472,000 8% B A7
HR e A W 2 o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of significant post balance sheet events are set out in note 45
to the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied throughout
the year ended March 31, 2005 with the Code of Best Practice as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The Company has received a written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAN TONG WAN
MANAGING DIRECTOR

July 26, 2005
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

Deloitte.
=g

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA CREDIT HOLDINGS LIMITED
B A AR B A A

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 32 to 100 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial
statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It
also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide
us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS - continued

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at March 31, 2005
and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

July 26, 2005
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other operating income
Bad debt recovered
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Net unrealised loss on
other investments
Losses on investments in
securities and properties

Loss from operations
Finance costs
Share of results of an associate
Gain on deemed disposal of
a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of an associate
Gain on partial disposal of
subsidiaries
Gain on deemed disposal of
an associate

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Net loss before minority interests

Minority interests
Net loss for the year

Loss per share
- basic and diluted
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Bt 5k ZERBHA e 2 UK
Notes 2005 2004
Tt T

HK$’000 HK$’000

4 819,777 561,105
(734,972) (548,060)

84,805 13,045

5,168 2,044

27,625 -

(139,342) (110,562)

- (994)

(3,871) (21,959)

6 (1,633) (21,623)
7 (27,248) (140,049)
8 (9,215) (8,532)
3,137 1,424

11,118 -

6,070 -

35(c) - 31,997
- 5,062

(16,138) (110,098)

10 (496) -
(16,634) (110,098)

3,714 1,260

(12,920) (108,838)

11 HKO0.81 cents HK7.29 cents




BALANCE SHEETS
AT MARCH 31, 2005

Assets

Non-current assets

Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investments in subsidiaries
Interests in associates
Investments in securities
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Pledged bank deposits

Current assets

Inventories

Properties held for sale

Trade and other receivables
Taxation recoverable

Amount due from an associate
Loans receivable

Investments in securities
Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Total assets

¥
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Notes

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
41

20
21

23
24
18
41

¥ AR
RE-ZZHLE=ZA=1—H

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
¥ | y NS

ZEZHAE ZZZENE ZEFHE _ZFNE
2005 2004 2005 2004
T T T T
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000
21,119 16,121 - -
65,040 7,124 1,653 638
14,276 12,195 - -
17 404 - -
- - 14,334 14,334
30,279 31,308 - -
15,515 14,826 136 698
- - 171,157 117,637
4,121 4,076 - -
150,467 86,054 187,280 133,307
394 322 - -
79 79 79 79
100,931 60,662 5,534 5,466
- 473 - -
614 3,801 - -
236,928 155,780 190,533 114,570
63,655 23,113 58,926 23,113
69,616 144,311 3,091 73,094
472,217 388,541 258,163 216,322
622,684 474,595 445,443 349,629




BALANCE SHEETS - continued

AT MARCH 31, 2005

Equity and liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Minority interests

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Obligations under finance leases
Convertible debentures

Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Deferred taxation

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Obligations under finance leases
Taxation payable

Provision

Total equity and liabilities
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Notes

25
26

27
28
29
30
31
32
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THE GROUP THE COMPANY
¥ Y| y NS

ZRBhYE ZFZFNE _ZZHE _ZEENE
2005 2004 2005 2004
T T T T
HK$’000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000
16,261 379,529 16,261 379,529
350,708 (25,570) 315,025 (80,972)
366,969 353,959 331,286 298,557
10,000 11,799 - -
39,106 8,855 - -
912 - - -
47,567 46,650 - -
3,240 1,679 1,364 1,364
- - 51,153 29,348
1,510 1,014 - -
92,335 58,198 52,517 30,712
60,475 34,970 2,640 5,360
85,491 15,583 59,000 15,000
589 - - -
86 86 - -
6,739 - - -
153,380 50,639 61,640 20,360
622,684 474,595 445,443 349,629

The financial statements on pages 32 to 100 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
July 26, 2005 and are signed on its behalf by:
FI2EEBI00E i B IR RE R “FFHAAELA /N H 8 gl LT 800t F o AR

Chan Heng Fai
Managing Chairman
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

At April 1, 2003

Reserves released on disposal of other
investment which was formerly a subsidiary

Goodwill reserve released on partial disposal
of a subsidiary

Revaluation deficit of investment properties and
loss not recognised in the consolidated
income statement

Exercise of warrants subscription rights

Net loss for the year

At March 31, 2004
Reserves released on disposal of other investment
which was formerly a subsidiary
Revaluation surplus of investment properties
Exchange difference on translation of
overseas operations
Gains not recognised in the consolidated
income statement
Exercise of warrants subscription rights
Net loss for the year

At March 31, 2005
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Total equity
T#x
HK$’000
455,194
4,943

(520)

(570)
3,750

(108,838)

353,959

7,008

973

4,454

5,427
13,495
(12,920)

366,969




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from operations
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Net unrealised loss on other investments
Impairment loss recognised in respect of

- held-to-maturity securities
— investment securities

Allowance for trade and other receivables

Allowance for loans receivable

Allowance for amount due from
an associate

Amortisation of goodwill

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation

(Surplus) deficit on revaluation of investment

properties
Goodwill reserve and capital reserve

released on disposal of other investment

which was formerly a subsidiary
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Operating cash flows before movement
in working capital
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable
(Increase) decrease in investments
in securities
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in amount due from
an associate
Increase in trade and other receivables
Decrease in trade and other payables
Increase in amount due to an associate
Increase in provision

Cash (used in) generated from operations

Tax in other jurisdiction refunded
Interest received

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

BB
R

KT 51 25 T

FLE WA

oAt % ok 55 B S 1R
RN B 45 JE R 2 W (E R 1R
— R WEE

S Tt
B T B A Wi 0 3 A
JRE Wi 5 JE A

— VB O W) K HE A

T 2

METY & 1

e

BRAaBaREE

REZZAE=ZA=ZTHIEEE

BEEY EEA (ZLER) e 4

B A (R E A D)
R M7 Bk 2 2 £ A

B B A ik i
B Y 36 BB R Rl 2

i 15

BEECEPNMZKERS

Wit =
JOE i B S D (3
HHEBE ()

FE 1T () W
— T 24 A ()

{Jj VAN

B 5y T F At R i 5K
B 5y B FCAtRE A+ 3K
A K — [ g 4 2 ) SRR

Ryl

I 48 T
T D

K (A g R &
L@Emjﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

Sy iPs)

mEXH (M) M
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ZZBHA ZZENIE
2005 2004
T#L F#xL
HK$/000 HK$/000
(27,248) (140,049)
(13,490) (16,391)
3,871 21,959
- 1,800

1,633 19,702
7,332 6,039
- 2,592
3,347 -
5,013 4,985
287 2,680
3,458 1,916
(121) 121
7,008 4,943
115 -
(8,795) (89,703)
3,187 (4,883)
(86,819) 138,599
(72) 135
(3,347) 13
(15,043) (1,968)
(2,231) (6,593)
1,561 -
6,739 -
(104,820) 35,600
473 -
13,490 16,391
(90,857) 51,991




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in pledged bank deposits
Investment in an associate

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of an associate
Acquisition of a subsidiary

Disposal of a subsidiary

Additions of intangible assets

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank loan raised

Issue of shares

Contributions from minority shareholders
Interest paid

Repayment of convertible debentures
Repayment of bank and mortgage loans
Repayment of finance lease obligations
Finance lease charges

NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash

Bank overdraft
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HK$/000 HK$’000

(35,817) (23,226)

(9,536) (5,522)

(58,712) (1,010)

19,584 -

36 3,555 -
37 89 -
- (148)

(80,837) (29,906)

91,831 15,000

13,495 3,750

11,118 -

(8,242) (8,532)

- (2,720)

(23,143) (537)

(323) -

(56) -

84,680 6,961

(87,104) 29,046

144,311 115,265

4,003 -

61,300 144,311

69,616 144,311

(8,316) -

61,300 144,311




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

1.

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in investment holding,
property investment and development, travel related services,
securities investment, credit card and health care business.

POTENTIAL IMPACT ARISING FROM THE RECENTLY ISSUED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In year 2004, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants issued a number of new or revised Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs”)
which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2005 except for HKFRS 3 Business Combination. The
Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2005.

HKFRS 3 is applicable to business combinations for which the
agreement date is on or after January 1, 2005. The Group has
not entered into any business combination for which the
agreement date is on or after January 1, 2005. Therefore HKFRS 3
did not have any impact on the Group for the year ended March
31, 2005.

The Group has commenced considering the potential impact of
these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to determine
whether these new HKFRSs would have a significant impact on
how its results of operations and financial position are prepared
and presented. These new HKFRSs may result in changes in the
future as to how the results and financial position of the Group
are prepared and presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention as modified for the revaluation of certain

properties and investments in securities.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The

principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to March
31 each year except for eBanker USA.com, Inc. and its
subsidiaries whose financial year end is December 31.
Adjustments have been made for the effect of significant
transactions or other events that occur between January 1 to

March 31.

The results of the subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the

effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within

the Group have been eliminated on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition with agreement date before
January 1, 2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to March 31, 2001
continues to be held in reserves, and will be charged to the
consolidated income statement at the time of disposal of the
relevant subsidiary, or at such time as the goodwill is determined

to be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisition after March 31, 2001 but with
agreement date before January 1, 2005 is capitalised and
amortised on a straight line basis over its useful economic life.
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is included
within the carrying amount of the associate. Goodwill arising on
the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately in the

consolidated balance sheet.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions after January 1, 2005 is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses (if any)

after initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Goodwill — continued

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
unamortised goodwill/goodwill previously eliminated against or
credited to reserves is included in the determination of the profit

or loss on disposal.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on acquisition with agreement date
before January 1, 2005 represents the excess of the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition over the cost of

acquisition.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisition prior to March 31, 2001
continues to be held in reserves and will be credited to income

at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisition after March 31, 2001
but with agreement date before January 1, 2005 is presented as
deduction from assets and will be released to income based on
an analysis of the circumstances from which the balance resulted.

Revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and

title has been passed.

Sale proceeds on trading of securities are recognised on a trade
date basis when a sale and purchase contract is entered into.

Sales of air tickets is recognised upon issuance of the air tickets.
Sales of tours is recognised upon departure of the tour group.

Revenue from hotel accommodation is recognised upon issuance

of the hotel vouchers.

Consultancy income and credit card service income are

recognised when services are provided.

License fees are recognised over the license period.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group’s right to receive payment has been established.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from
properties under operating leases, is recognised on a straight

line basis over the term of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Interest income from credit card receivables is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on an accrual basis, except where
a debt becomes doubtful, in which case recognition of interest

income is suspended until it is realised on a cash basis.

Other interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to

the principal outstanding and at the rate applicable.

Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance

sheet at cost less any identified impairment losses.

Associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results of its associates for the year. In
the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are stated
at the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates plus the
goodwill in so far as it has not already been amortised, less any

identified impairment loss.

The results of associates are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable during the year.
In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates are
stated at cost, as reduced by any identified impairment losses.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are held
for their investment potential, any rental income being negotiated

at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market value based
on independent professional valuations at the balance sheet date.
Any surplus or deficit arising on the revaluation of investment
properties is credited or charged to the investment property
revaluation reserve unless the balance of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, in which case the excess of the
deficit over the balance of the investment property revaluation
reserve is charged to the income statement. Where a deficit has
previously been charged to the income statement and a
revaluation surplus subsequently arises, this surplus is credited
to the income statement to the extent of the deficit previously

charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the balance on the
investment property revaluation reserve attributable to that

property is transferred to the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Investment properties — continued

No depreciation is provided in respect of investment properties
which are held on leases with unexpired terms, including the

renewable period, of more than twenty years.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than properties held for
development, are stated at cost less depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, where appropriate.

Certain properties held for development are carried at a valuation
at March 31, 1995. Advantage has been taken of the transitional
relief provided by paragraph 80 of the Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 17 “Property, Plant and Equipment” issued
by the HKICPA from the requirement to make regular revaluations
of the Group’s land and buildings which had been carried out at
revalued amounts prior to September 30, 1995 and, accordingly,
no further revaluation of properties held for development is
carried out. The surplus arising on revaluation of land and
buildings was credited to the revaluation reserve. Any future
decrease in value of these assets will be charged to the income
statement to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on
the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of the
asset. On the sale or retirement of such assets, the attributable

revaluation surplus will be transferred to retained profits.

No depreciation is provided on properties held for development.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, other than properties held for development,
over their estimated useful lives, on the following bases and at

the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the remaining terms
of the leases

2% on straight line method

Over the term of the lease

20%-25% on reducing
balance method

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and
motor vehicles

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceed
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the

income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes borrowing cost, professional fees
and other direct costs attributable to such properties. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all
further costs to completion and costs to be incurred in selling.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense

in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be
recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant asset

is amortised on a straight line basis over its useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another Statements
of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP”), in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that

SSAP.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another SSAP, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under

that SSAP.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis

and are initially measured at cost.

At subsequent reporting dates, debt securities that the Group
has the expressed intention and ability to hold to maturity (held-
to-maturity debt securities) are measured at amortised cost, less
any impairment loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts.
The annual amortisation of any discount or premium on the
acquisition of a held-to-maturity is aggregated with other
investment income receivable over the term of the instrument so
that the revenue recognised in each period represents a constant

yield on the investment.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are

classified as investment securities and other investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified
long-term strategic purpose, are measured at subsequent reporting
dates at cost, as reduced by any impairment loss that is other

than temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with unrealised

gains and losses included in net profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories, which represent premium items for card holders,
are stated at the lower of cost, calculated using weighted average

method, and net realisable value.

Assets held under hire purchase contracts

Leases are classified as finance lease when the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets concerned to the Group. Assets held under finance
leases are capitalised at their fair values at the date of acquisition.
The corresponding liability to the lessor, net of interest charges,
is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.
Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total
leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired,
are charged to the income statement over the period of the
relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge
on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting

period.

Operating leases

Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on

a straight line basis over the relevant lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Profits and losses arising on exchange are included in the
net profit or loss for the year.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations outside Hong Kong are translated at the exchange
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and
transferred to the Group’s translation reserve. Such translation
differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period
in which the operation is disposed of.

Convertible debentures

Convertible debentures are recognised as liabilities. The finance
cost recognised in the income statement in respect of the
convertible debentures is calculated so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
convertible debentures for each financial year.

The costs, if any, incurred in connection with the issue of
convertible notes are charged to the income statement in the
period of issue.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income and expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes
income statement items that are never taxable and deductible.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Taxation - continued

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow

all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt

with in equity.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are

charged as expenses as they fall due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

4.

TURNOVER
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4.

Turnover represents the interest earned on credit card advances,
service income, income from trading of securities, sale of air
ticket, tours and hotel accommodation, dividend income, interest
earned on bank deposits and loans, consultancy service income,
license fees of healthcare software and rental income is

summarised as follows:

Sale proceeds of securities trading

Sale of air tickets, tours and hotel
accommodation

License fees for healthcare software

Consultancy service income

Credit card interest income

Dividend income

Rental income

Other interest income

Credit card service income
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“REHAF
2005
T#x
HK$’000

524,276

216,719
40,843
12,756
12,307
8,875
1,907
1,183
911

819,777

“REWAE
2004
T#x
HK$’000

485,919

37,844
12,933
15,487
4,692
1,457
904
1,869

561,105



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Business segments

primary segment information.

REVENUE AND RESULTS
Year ended March 31, 2005

TURNOVER
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Total

Inter-segment sales are charged at
prevailing market prices.

SEGMENT RESULTS

Unallocated corporate revenue
Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs
Share of results of an
associate
Gain on deemed disposal of
a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of an associate

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Net loss before minority
interests
Minority interests
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5. AWEH
e pigi
For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into WUE BN F o A5 M H R SR
six operating divisions — travel related operations, credit card 5 T Y AR A — ik A0 A B S A5
operations, securities trading and investments, treasury REH - BHEERRE MER
investment, property investment and health care. These principal G ERE D AR LT M E
operating activities are the basis on which the Group reports its TR RS T A S 2
O R E R 2 R o
Segment information about these businesses is presented below. WA A MERZHMT -
L&Y ES
BE_ZEXHE=A=Z+—HI:
R
ki fedit |
ULES IR T ] RRE O MERE O WREE frie Ha N
Travel Securities
relted  Credit card tradingand ~ Treasury  Property Health
operations  operations investments investment investment care  Elimination Consolidated
T#x T T T T T#x T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RN
HiE 216,719 13218 533,151 1,183 1,907 53,599 - 819777
nnHEE - 2,297 - 295 - - (24052) -
it 216,719 15515 533,151 23,138 1,907 53599 (24252) 819777
HHREER
R A
UEES | (@47) 15968 23,834 2,877) 741)  (8,835) - M
RFARAANG 5,047
RFRARAARY (55,227)
HEER (27,248)
ME A 9,215)
it~ HBE A
5 3,137
BAEL &~ B
WAZ b - - - - - 11,118 - 11,118
&~ R AL
2 6,070
PR ER (16,138)
B (496)
At D RBR
LS B (16,634)
DU RS 3,714
KEERER (12,920)

Net loss for the year




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

5.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION - continued
Business segments — continued

BALANCE SHEET
At March 31, 2005

3
iLES
Travel
related
operations
T
HK$'000
ASSETS ¥
Segment assets HHEE 46,097
Interests in associates REEAT
ba 1
Unallocated corporate assets £ ¥/ EL/A
4
Consolidated total assets GAEEMM
LIABILITIES fif
Segment liabilities P AE 17,124
Unallocated corporate ATREAT
liabilities ffi
Consolidated total liabilities %% & f 4 %
OTHER INFORMATION
Year ended March 31, 2005
3]
W EH
Travel
related
operations
T
HK$'000
Capital expenditures HARR 2,419
Depreciation ik 295
Allowance for trade and B R
other receivables TE a8 B M 999
Amortisation of goodwill A 709
Amortisation of intangible assets % H i H4 -
Impairment loss recognised wHEREL
in respect of investments B
in securities B -
Unrealised loss on other AiEz
investments AERER -
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5.
it HH
HIRES R8t% LN E/3
Securities
Credit card trading and Treasury
operations  investments investment
T#x T#x T#x
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
16,609 252,443 3,491
3,038 599 645
R
RS  REE HERK
Securities

Credit card ~ trading and Treasury

operations  investments  investment

T T T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

3,433 954 1,554

444 124 538

6,333 - -

- 1,033 -

- 3,671 -

gy W ¥R —
EXiFi8: Bl

¥ LA
BoFEREZA = A

Consolidated

T#x

HK$'000

370,324

30,279

222,081

622,684

Consolidated

T#x
HK$'000

62,143
3,458

7,332
5,013

hENE i
Property Health
investment care
T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
21,198 30,486
88 31,806
Hfb ¥ e
BE_ZFZAF=ZHA=Z1+—HI
AR
it BERE ATAR
Health  Property
care  investment Unallocated
T Ti#x T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,330 1,796 50,657
951 66 1,040
4,304 . .
287 - -

287

1,633

3,671



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

5.
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION - continued 5. AEER -8
Business segments — continued X84 — #
REVENUE AND RESULTS ‘&ﬁlj¥ﬁi -
Year ended March 31, 2004 ME_FLTNFE=A=T—HIE
AR
wHHE
R ES ki iN:Ea e hENE 33 B4 Ba
Securities
Credit card  trading and Treasury Property Health
operations  investments investment investment care  Elimination  Consolidated
T T T#x T T T T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TURNOVER BEH
External sales HibgiE 17,356 490,611 904 1457 50,777 - 561,105
Inter-segment sales o g 1,931 - 19,516 - - (21,447) -
Total @t 19,287 490,611 20,420 1,457 50,777 (21,447) 561,105
Inter-segment sales are charged NEHER
at prevailing market prices. BihifEae.
SEGMENT RESULTS VB (6,094) (74,614) (638) (251) (7,288) - (88,885)
Unallocated corporate FFnE AT
revenue s 1,895
Unallocated corporate FFnE AT
expenses Bl 3 (53,059)
Loss from operations aEER (140,049)
Finance costs B A (8,532)
Share of results of an A1l — B
associate UNGES | 1,424
Gain on partial disposal of & &2
subsidiaries AR s 31,997
Gain on deemed disposal of HfEH &~ E
an associate UNCIPA & 5,062
Loss before taxation e g (110,098)
Taxation fLA -
Net loss before minority &t 2 #R &
interests RRAFER (110,098)
Minority interests DB 1,260
Net loss for the year KEERER (108,838)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

5.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION - continued

Business segments — continued

BALANCE SHEET
At March 31, 2004

ASSETS 3

Segment assets B E

Interests in associates N F-UNCIPA 15
Unallocated corporate assets RTHERAAERE
Consolidated total assets GREEAHE
LIABILITIES i

Segment liabilities NAR

Unallocated corporate liabilities & TR EA R A K
Consolidated total liabilities Geakan

OTHER INFORMATION
Year ended March 31, 2004

BREEH
Credit card
operations
T
HK$'000
Capital expenditures BAR 40
Depreciation g 809
Allowance for loans R 3
receivable B -
Allowance for trade and %5 R Eftr
other receivables R 5,212
Amortisation of goodwill T & & -
Amortisation and B EERH
write-off of intangible B 4
assets -

Impairment loss recognised % & 2
in respect of investments B R B A

in securities E# -
Unrealised loss on other ~ Hftif &2
investments FERER -

(R ET

Credit card
operations
T
HK$'000

41,349

3,805

W HE
T3
Securities
trading and
investments
Ti#x
HK$’000

21,502

21,959

w5 HE
13 ¢
Securities
trading and
investments
T#x
HK$/000

180,085

804

¥ 8%

Treasury
investment

T
HKS$'000

503
270

2,592

W 5 A Bk —
RERREAFZA = kAR

5. &R -4
EHX B

o AR
Mo FENEZH=+—H

S nER% 3 Ba
Treasury Property Health
investment  investment care  Consolidated

T T T Tigx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

6,652 16,200 29,801 274,087
31,308
169,200
474,595
045 86 23,565 28,905
79,932
108,837
I b % R
BE_FFNF=A=Z1+—HI
AR
Rit WE#% ATPAR By
Health Property
care investment  Unallocated  Consolidated

T T T T
HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

615 - - 1,158
837 - - 1,916
- - - 2,592
827 - - 6,039
4,985 - - 4,985
2,680 - - 2,680
- - - 21,502

- - - 21,959



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

5.
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION - continued 5. iR -4
Geographical segments b bk 4y 5
The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong Kong, A AR T BB T SRR A s L R
North America and South East Asia. e SRR Hi e
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales by R A B [ 4 [ T8 0
geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/ Z B ST T ASE B B RS
services: Ji. 7 3l -
i Hb it Wi 5
Vg PA-% 3]
Turnover by
geographical market
“EENAE “RENLE
2005 2004
T# L T# K
HK$’000 HK$’000
Hong Kong GRS 548,245 508,849
North America JEE M 53,998 52,068
South East Asia gk 217,534 188
819,777 561,105
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment UTAREERSEEZIET
assets at the balance sheet date, and additions to property, plant HAOW > FNTEREYE -BKE ML
and equipment and intangible assets during the year, analysed WA EEREE TR
by the geographical area in which the assets are located: A
UL N
4 W B 7 Y i fEL Wl A e B A
Additions to
Carrying property, plant
amount of and equipment
segment assets and intangible assets
“ERAE CEFFNE FELFE —FFNE
2005 2004 2005 2004
T# K T#x T#x T# K
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Hong Kong Tl 500,962 425,282 58,027 543
North America JE M 57,737 44,997 - 615
South East Asia R ER 63,985 4,316 4,116 -
622,684 474,595 62,143 1,158




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

S 5 Wt A WY ik —

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005 REFZFAE=ZA=ZT-HILAEE
6.  LOSSES ON INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES AND PROPERTIES 6. KRH#EHZEWEREZEH
ZRRHAE —EZENE
2005 200_‘}
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Impairment losses recognised in respect of R 5 & TEERE 2
9 {F 1 12
— investment securities —HEEH 1,633 19,702
— held-to-maturity securities —FE B Yk - 1,800
Deficit on revaluation of investment properties % & ¥ % & 1 fi5 4h - 121
1,633 21,623
Note: The directors assessed the recoverable amounts of the investments BiF T A O B 2 AT el
in securities and identified certain investment securities and held- FoWMHEE R RE TREE S
to-maturity securities were fully impaired due to poor financial LESESI P e P (RS U
performance of these investments. %7 DLBCRZ S5 1504 1 B & O
During the year, the impairment loss recognised for investment N gﬁé#ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁl&ﬁ
securities is HK$1,633,000 (2004: HK$19,702,000). For the year 1,633,000% 7T (—FZF M4
ended March 31, 2004, the impairment loss recognised for held 19,702, OOO(%JT: ol B A&
to maturity securities is HK$1,800,000. lﬂli H +—H JJ:ETE?JE%
= P 5 J5 iR
1,800,000% JG °
7. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 7. EBER
BRI ZRENE
2005 2004
T# T T# T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Loss from operations has been arrived K R A R
at after charging: PLF &8 :
Allowance for loans receivable A A B A A - 2,592
Allowance for trade and other receivables B Sy B HoAth JE iz 2 I 35 7,332 6,039
Allowance for amount due from an associate — [ W 2 N R R kB A 3,347 -
Auditors’ remuneration % 45 Filf T 4
— Current year — AR 1,687 1,132
— (Over)underprovision in respect of — bR GBI
prior year BMHA R (158) 152
Amortisation of goodwill included in At ATBEB 302
administrative expenses . R £ 5,013 4,985
Amortisation of intangible assets included in FE AT BB 302 P
administrative expenses B 287 2,680
Depreciation e 3,458 1,916
Loss on disposal of property, plant and 3 S K A
equipment ZhEHE 115 -
Minimum lease payments for operating leases iR/ ST gtk
in respect of rented premises Z B & 6,230 3,761
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments e B A (B g
(Note) HEREME) (M) 78,890 74,738
and crediting: Lot A
Gross rental income from investment BEYELAHEIA
properties less outgoings of HK$444,000 W 3 H 444,000% 7T
(2004: HK$477,000) (ZFE P4
477,000 7C) 1,463 980
Surplus on revaluation of investment properties 4% % ) 2 & 1 & 6% 121 -
Note: Included in staff costs are retirement benefit scheme contributions B 5E: 8 iEUJ*ZZIK@J?ﬁLWTmﬁ'Jﬁ%M A
of approximately HK$1,841,000 (2004: HK$884,000). 41,841,000 7t (%%

K
i 884, 0003 7t



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued W B5 % Bk — 4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

8. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:
Convertible debentures
Bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable
within five years
Bank loans not wholly repayable
within five years
Finance lease charges

Directors

The directors’ emoluments are analysed
as follows:

Fees:
Executive
Non-executive
Independent non-executive

Other emoluments paid to executive directors:

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Other emoluments paid to alternate directors:

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Total emoluments

REZZAE=ZA=ZTHIEEE

8. RWEMA
e 2% % ZREZWNIE
2005 2004
T#T T#T
HK$’000 HK$’000

THIKIHZ A G

] e AR 6,896 7,198
N HAE N2 HER

SRAT BB K L 1,182 556
EJ8 i T4 TR 2 8

g 12 2 R AT K 1,081 778
Rl FH 49 B 56 -

9,215 8,532

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. HHM4EREHFHRE

ZERIHAE ZREZWNIE
2005 2004
Tt Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000
wHwHr
HHEME N T
M4
AT 90 _
FEBAT 60 79
S5 JE AT 352 410
BT E S 2 HA 4
W 4 S HAth 4w R 24,155 32,860
3B R AR A 5T B 4E 3 397 374
BT ES 2 Hhm 4
W & e H At 45 A - _
5B R 48 A 51 #1446 3 - _
T 4> 44 %8 25,054 33,723



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

9.

S 5 Wt A WY ik —

REZZAE=ZA=ZTHIEEE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

— continued

The emoluments of the directors were within the following bands:

Nil up to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000
HK$14,500,001 to HK$15,000,000
HK$24,000,001 to HK$24,500,000

Highest paid employees

% % 1,000,000% JC

1,000,001 #5 5 % 1,500,000 7
1,500,001 # 5¢ % 2,000,000 7
6,500,001%5 J£ £ 7,000,000%5 7C
7,500,001 JC £ 8,000,000 JC

g0 A B de W DR HL - 4

WA TSR
“RBIAR SRENE
2005 2004
EE YN EE YN
Number of Number of

director(s) director(s)

14,500,001% JG £ 15,000,000% JC 1 -
24,000,001 JC % 24,500,000 7C - 1

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included three
directors (2004: three), details of whose emoluments are set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2004: two) highest
paid employees, other than directors of the Company, are as

follows:

Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

i 4 B At A5 A
A8 AR A 3 K

The emoluments of the above highest paid employees were within

the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

1,000,001#5 3G % 1,500,000 76
2,000,001 % JG % 2,500,000% J©
2,500,001 % JG % 3,000,000% J©

35 5 0 0

AL I A REHREE GRS =4
(ZRTPAE: =4) Ed K&
REIEHON oo M4 (&%
P4 W 4) FARFRERZ RE
B ZM e :

SRFNE —REWA
2005 2004
T#x T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000
3,950 3,538
3,950 3,538

kA O B2 B A T
b

ZRBHE ZRBWE
2005 2004

e B A ¥ e B A ¥
Number of Number of

employee(s) employee(s)
1 1
- 1
1 -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

10.

11.

TAXATION

Deferred tax — current year (note 32)
(Bf5E32)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
financial statements for both years as the Group either has no
assessable profits or the assessable profits were wholly absorbed
by tax losses brought forward.

The tax for the year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation
per the income statement as follows:

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

10.

AR S Bl JH — A 4R

B
SRR SEERNAE
2005 2004
T#L T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000

496 —

Fh 7 A S T S A0 R R B v ) s
kB i A 2 0 R AT B E i 18 P
IR 8 > WO B 7E W2 4 B 2 B RS
P LA A 7 45 B A

A AT i T B A 3 B TR B AT S 4R
ZHIEMT

ZERIHAE BRI
2005 2004
T#T T#T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Loss before taxation o B il e 15 (16,138) (110,098)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 17.5% AR S BB H17.5%
(2004: 17.5%) (ZFFMAE17.5%)
w2 Bl 1A (2,824) (19,267)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AN AT AN S 2 BB R
for tax purposes 13,012 14,950
Tax effect of income not taxable JEE BB A 2 B 5 2
for tax purposes (13,030) (9,268)
Tax effect on share of results of an associate Ak — FH?H&?%Z‘%%%
Z B (549) (249)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised & e 7R *EIEEETE‘Z
Tl 75 5% 2 6,588 16,231
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not By 8 A AF B R R
recognised in previous years T4 JEL e 18 2 B 05 5 B (3,176) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries in HoAh =] % RE [ B\
other jurisdictions Bl e AR 2 5 B 475 (2,397)
Tax charge for the year A A B R JH S 496 -
LOSS PER SHARE 11. ®HREHR

The calculation of loss per share is based on net loss for the
year of HK$12,920,000 (2004: HK$108,838,000) and on the
weighted average number of 1,586,979,000 (2004:
1,493,117,965) shares.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
March 31, 2005 and March 31, 2004 does not assume the
exercise of potential dilutive ordinary shares as their exercise
would result in reduction in loss per share for the both years
and the conversion of the Group’s outstanding convertible
debentures would result in a decrease in net loss per share for
the year.

%&J&?iﬁ)ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%&ﬂa
12,920,000 T ( — & 2% [ 4F :
108,838,000% 7C) &ﬁME%fmx
#01,586,979,000/% ( - F T Y 4E:
1,493,117,9658%) #5t& o

i £ 0 PS94 0
BB E R A
AR BN A

H k4 B 2 45 Rl 18 2 > T i 46
A AR ] i OR A0 R] N R g
B B I 1R TR R
% W 8 4F 2 2 A I i i 4R > ©
B AT ) 3 20 I ST B AT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

12.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. BEPE
7 4
THE GROUP
“RRIHAE - 2 21K
2005 2004
T#xL T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000
VALUATION i i
At beginning of the year T 44 16,121 11,482
Transfer from property, plant and equipment LLS7 357 E Y SN &) - 5,330
Surplus (deficit) arising on revaluation EAT A (4D 1,094 (691)
Exchange realignment [E 53, o) B 3,904 -
At end of the year TR AR 21,119 16,121
The market value of investment properties shown above PLESCEY) 32 (4
comprises:
“RRIAE - 2 21K S
2005 2004
T#xL T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000
Medium-term leases outside Hong Kong FHB LNz P A Y % 4,702 4,316
Freehold outside Hong Kong T LUSh 2 K A SEREY) 26 16,417 11,805
21,119 16,121

The investment properties of the Group at No. B503, 4821 53rd
Street, Delta, British Columbia, Canada and No. 1281, Alberni
Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada were revalued at
March 31, 2005 on an open market value basis by Johnston,
Ross & Cheng Ltd., an independent firm of professional valuers,
at value between HK$4,185,000 (CAD650,000) to HK$4,346,000
(CAD675,000). The directors of the Company considered it would
be more appropriate to adopt the lowest valuation amount which
is HK$4,185,000 after considering the conditions of the
investment properties. Accordingly, the investment properties

were valued at HK$4,185,000.

The investment properties of the Group at No. 981 Nelson Street,
Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada were revalued at March
31, 2005 on an open market value basis by Colliers International
Realty Advisors Inc., an independent firm of professional valuers,

at value of HK$12,232,200 (CAD1,900,000).

The investment properties of the Group at No. 35 North Canal
Road, Singapore were revalued at March 31, 2005 on an open
market value basis by Asian Appraisal Company Pte Ltd., an
independent firm of professional valuers, at value of

HK$4,702,000 (S$1,000,000).

A 42 B 57 i I & K 58T A Delta,
53rd Street 482155B503 & il & K
B 4 1 6 #E Alberni Street 1281
B HREYE N FEREZA
=+ —Hhm B HEMLMGL A
Johnston, Ross & Cheng Ltd. 3% 24
B T (A 2L ME A 17 S A > HAN(E AP
4,185,000 7C (650,000 ) =
4,346,000% 7C (675,000/m %) 2
MeoARARERLELBREWEZ
R UL A% > 58 B R AR e ARl (4
4,185,000 0 24 5 & i EY
¥ 2 A {E B 4,185,000% 7T

P S TR A A1 NI T R i 2
Nelson Street 98158 2 & ¥ % »
N EFEERAF=ZA=ZT—HHHE
OB E i [ & A Colliers
International Realty Advisors Inc.
iz 7 BH T (A 3k HE AT A HAN(E
#$12,232,200% 7% (1,900,000
) o

A £E H 57 Y 7 0 3 North Canal
Road 355 2 EWH > N _F X
HE=ZHA=+—HF h B\ rHEEN
{E 22 7] Asian Appraisal Company
Pte Ltd. %2 BA T {H 3% HE 3 47 S £ »
H 5 ® & 4,702,000 I
(1,000,000 ¥ oT) -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

12.

13.

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 12. BEWE-4
As a result, surplus on revaluation of HK$973,000 and BCBE > H A 88 973,000 T K
HK$121,000 were credited to investment property revaluation 121,000% ¢ & 73 il 5 A 5% &) 3
reserve and consolidated income statement respectively. A {6 A B AR S i i R
All of the Group’s investment properties are rented out under A LR M BT A R ) IR R RS
operating leases and have been pledged to secure banking FH & A - 3 E st AS 2k B 4% 2 )t
facilities granted to the Group. AT Bl A R o
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.  P3E- W Bk fis
+ i fg GR-%8
L3 &3 B R Ht
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold and motor
buildings ~ improvements vehicles Total
T#x T#x T# T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THE GROUP A
COST OR VALUATION A A o A £
At April 1, 2004 RZFENENH—H 4,280 3,375 18,726 26,381
Exchange realignment HE 50,38 5 - - 99 99
Additions KE 49,507 2,048 8,450 60,005
Acquired on acquisition of a W — P I 22
subsidiary et - - 2,138 2,138
Disposal of a subsidiary 45— ] B A - - (862) (862)
Disposals Rk - (3,089) (34) (3,123)
At March 31, 2005 REFTRAE
=HA=+—H 53,787 2,334 28,517 84,638
Comprising 4%
At cost JEAE 49,583 2,334 28,517 80,434
At professional valuation - 1995 HEME-——LAE 4,204 - - 4,204
53,787 2,334 28,517 84,638
DEPRECIATION AND 3 46 B W A
IMPAIRMENT
At April 1, 2004 RZFZNWENA—H - 3,268 15,989 19,257
Provided for the year A 981 107 2,370 3,458
Eliminated on disposal of 5 — i
a subsidiary IRF i 5 - - (109) (109)
Eliminated on disposals B IR A - (2,984) (24) (3,008)
At March 31, 2005 S
ZA=Z+—H 981 391 18,226 19,598
NET BOOK VALUES e i 9 £
At March 31, 2005 e
ZA=Z+—H 52,806 1,943 10,291 65,040
At March 31, 2004 UL
=ZA=+—H 4,280 107 2,737 7,124




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued W B5 % Bk — 4
RE-ZRHEAE=ZA=T—HIL4EE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued 13. W3- Wb Kokl — 4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

13.

The net book value of properties shown above comprises:

Medium-term leases in Hong Kong
Freehold outside Hong Kong

THE COMPANY
COST

At April 1, 2004
Additions

At March 31, 2005

DEPRECIATION
At April 1, 2004
Provided for the year

At March 31, 2005

NET BOOK VALUES
At March 31, 2005

At March 31, 2004

DL bWy 3 2 W T (R L
+ 3 R b
Land and buildings
“RRBHE ZREWIE
2005 2004
T#T T#T
HK$’000 HK$’000
HisZz R A Y 48,602 76
TN 2
KN FEREY ¥ 4,204 4,204
52,806 4,280
B HE
B
Furniture,
fixtures and
motor vehicles
T
HK$’000
A2 H
BEAS i
WZEREMAEN A —H 2,365
NE 1,554
N EBEHE=ZA=+—H 3,919
¥ g
AR EMAEN A —H 1,727
A P A 539
R _EEHFE=ZH=+—H 2,266
W i ¥ L
N EBEHE=ZA=+—H 1,653
W oEENE=H=+—H 638



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

14. GOODWILL

COST
At April 1, 2004
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary

At March 31, 2005

AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At April 1, 2004

Charge for the year

At March 31, 2005

NET BOOK VALUES
At March 31, 2005

At March 31, 2004

The amortisation period adopted for goodwill is five years on a

straight line basis.

15.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

COST
At April 1, 2004 and March 31, 2005

AMORTISATION

At March 31, 2004
Charge for the year
At March 31, 2005

NET BOOK VALUES
At March 31, 2005

At March 31, 2004

Intangible assets represent software development costs, which
are amortised on a straight line basis over the product lives of

two to four years.

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

14. wWEH
A 4R
THE GROUP
Tt
HK$’000
BEAS fi
W EEAEN H—H 21,505
WA B — ] R A D IR E A 7,094
WoEEHFE=ZA=+—H 28,599
B 85 B 9 A
REENFEMA —H 9,310
A A B B R U (H 5,013
W oEEHRHE=ZA=+—H 14,323
W i ¥ L
WoEEHE=ZA=+—H 14,276
N oFEFENE=HA=+—H 12,195

PR R AR S > P DR Ak S 0
Jh AR o

15. % E

A
THE GROUP
T#L
HK$’000
B AR A
M EZENAAENH—H R
N EERE=ZH=+—H 6,825
3]
R OEENE=ZA =+—H 6,421
A A B 287
R _EEHFE=ZH=+—H 6,708
R Wi ¥ L
Mo_FEFRFE=ZA=+—H 117
BRoEENME=ZA=+—H 404

T B T W PR A 1 AR
UL R AR R AR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RHWEARZHE
A A
THE COMPANY
ZRRBHE ZRBWE
2005 2004
T#T T#T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Unlisted shares, at cost I LT R A > #i RAAE 96,161 96,161
Less: Impairment losses recognised W e RR W (E S 1R (81,827) (81,827)
14,334 14,334
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at March 31, 2005 are RKNFR _EEZERFE=H=1+—
set out in note 46. H 2 Bt & 2 &1 515 o B k46 -
17.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. RBBARZHER
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
A4 E A2 H
ZERHE ZFFWE _FRHYE _EENE
2005 2004 2005 2004
T# T T#t T ¥t T# 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Unlisted shares, at cost I b Ry
LAY - - 5,385 5,385
Less: Impairment losses recognised ¥ : € fifE &% I8 (B JE5 48 - - (5,385) (5,385)
Share of net assets B Ak & (A 29,234 29,633 - -
Goodwill of an associate — [ W 2 2 ) T 1,045 1,675 - -
30,279 31,308 - -
Market value of listed shares A T
— Overseas — g Hh 36,486 43,678 - -
The movement of goodwill of an associate is as follows: — [ B AN F R RS E AT
T# T
HK$’000
COST %S
At April 1, 2004 A EFMAENH —H 1,675
Arising on acquisition of an associate W S — [H] T % D IR E A 1,045
Eliminated on disposal of an associate B — [ B 4 N ) BRF S B (1,675)
At March 31, 2005 W _EEAFE=A=1+—H 1,045

The amortisation period adopted for goodwill is five years on a
straight line basis.

Particulars of the Group’s principal associate at March 31, 2005
are set out in note 47.

A L R B ST R A
A

KEBNR __EELFE=ZH=1—
H 2 £ BB A v 565 SO B 5t
470



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

18. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

THE GROUP

Equity securities:
Listed
Unlisted

Debt securities:
Listed
Unlisted

Total securities:
Listed
Hong Kong
Overseas
Unlisted

Market value of
listed securities

Carrying amount analysed for
reporting purposes as:

Current
Non-current

Mok %
Ll
F Ll

e % -
L
F Ll

EH M
L
Eif
i
F L

L
i {8

BERAMZ

i 047 -

ik
it

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

18. BH{HE
A4
BE#E B IY LS st
Investment Other

securities investments Total
ZRBAE CBBNE ZFFHE ZZEINE ZZRH4E ZZZNAA
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Tl Tiln T T T Tiln
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
10,433 12,341 232,903 133,306 243,336 145,647
3,657 1,060 4,025 3,959 7,682 5,019
14,090 13,401 236,928 137,265 251,018 150,666
- - - 722 - 722
1,425 1,425 - 17,793 1,425 19,218
1,425 1,425 - 18,515 1,425 19,940
- - 195,357 129,936 195,357 129,936
10,433 12,341 37,546 4,092 47,979 16,433
5,082 2,485 4,025 21,752 9,107 24,237
15,515 14,826 236,928 155,780 252,443 170,606
7,502 13,632 232,903 134,028 240,405 147,660
- - 236,928 155,780 236,928 155,780
15,515 14,826 - - 15,515 14,826
15,515 14,826 236,928 155,780 252,443 170,606




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

18.

19.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES - continued

THE COMPANY

Equity securities:
Listed
Unlisted

Market value of
listed securities

Carrying amount analysed for
reporting purposes as:

Current
Non-current

Mok %
Ll
F Ll

L
i {f

REHRANZ
W fE 7B

ik |
FE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

Interest bearing at prevailing market rate

Non-interest bearing

Less: Allowances for doubtful debts

The amounts are unsecured and have no fixed repayment terms.
In the opinion of the directors, the amounts will not be repaid
within the next twelve months from the balance sheet date and,

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

18. WHHH -4
/|
B¥EH B YR8 Wit
Investment Other

securities investments Total
CERAE CEFNE ZEFHE ZEENE Z2LA4 ZZENE
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
T#T T#T T T#x T T
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000
- - 186,508 110,611 186,508 110,611
136 698 4,025 3,959 4,161 4,657
136 698 190,533 114,570 190,669 115,268
- - 186,508 110,611 186,508 110,611
- - 190,533 114,570 190,533 114,570
136 698 - - 136 698
136 698 190,533 114,570 190,669 115,268

19. W& A ¥ R
AR
THE COMPANY

ZERIHAE ZREWNE
2005 2004
Tt Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000
WHATH 8 B E5 R 233,586 215,143
B 230,972 195,895
464,558 411,038
W R AR A (293,401) (293,401)

accordingly, the amounts are shown as non-current.

171,157

117,637

% S ARCE Ry IS T R S (] S AR K
9o B B RR Sy o % AF SOH AR A
SR AR A KR > K s

((EE R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

20.

21.

22,

INVENTORIES 20.

THE GROUP

The amounts represent premium items for credit card holders

and are carried at cost.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 21.

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

The properties held for sale are situated in Hong Kong and held

under medium-term leases.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22,

The average credit terms granted by the Group to its trade

customers are as follows:

Health care business 45 days

Travel related operations 30 days

Credit card holders for up to 56 days interest free

retail sales repayment period

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the

reporting date:

0 - 60 days 0% 60H

61 — 90 days 612 90H

Over 90 days 90H U I

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 2 4~ FEAT Z0OE I
Al 18 UK

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

i1
M

% AR 5 R A N 0 b 1%
JEAAE AR ©

(ERLIES
5 B AR A

T W) S0 A > T % P AR A0
EERCIE

U5 Be 3Cfib M ek 5

REBEBKTEHEHEF 2 THE
BT

i fk 2 45H

it % AH B SE B 30H
FHREEA RZ56H %8
T 7

R L 5 B SR M B 4
7 40T

A 4

THE GROUP
—FFHAF “REWAE
2005 2004
T#x T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000
52,616 33,353
1,008 395
1,011 2,608
54,635 36,356
46,296 24,306

100,931 60,662



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

23.

24.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 23.
Amount due from an associate — [H T 8 N R R
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts RN

The amount is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed
repayment terms.

LOANS RECEIVABLE 24.
Term loans, after allowance A 15 o B
Mortgage loans, after allowance AR 15 1 R B

The term loans were secured by certain shares of a company,
interest bearing at prevailing market rates and were fully repaid
during the year.

The mortgage loans bear interest at 0.5% over the prime interest
rates in Hong Kong and are repayable by instalments up to year
2011. The loans are secured by mortgages over properties placed
by the borrowers. The mortgage loans are repayable on demand
due to the default on repayment by the borrowers.
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— [ 9Bk 28 2 Wl KK
A4
THE GROUP
“RERLY ZRBNA
2005 2004
T#L T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000
3,347 -
(3,347) -

B2 ARTE T R 0 B M B[R] E R
x4
HA

HE WBc £ 5K
AL
THE GROUP
SRRHAF SERNE
2005 2004
T#x T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000
- 2,850
614 951
614 3,801
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

25.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At April 1, 2003 of HK$0.25 each

Share consolidation on
May 9, 2003

Increase on May 9, 2003 of
HK$6.25 each

Share subdivision on
December 3, 2003

At March 31, 2004 of HK$0.25 each

Capital reduction on April 19, 2004
Increase on April 19, 2004 of
HK$0.01 each

At March 31, 2005 of HK$0.01 each

Issued and fully paid:

At April 1, 2003

Share consolidation on
May 9, 2003

Share subdivision on
December 3, 2003

Exercise of Bonus Warrants
subscription rights

Issue of bonus shares

At March 31, 2004

Capital reduction on April 19, 2004

Exercise of Bonus Warrants
subscription rights

Issue of bonus shares

Exercise of 2005 Warrants
subscription rights

Exercise of 2009 Warrants
subscription rights

At March 31, 2005

BE A
R-ZFZ=ZFMA—H
HREE0.25H T
RoEE=HETLANA
B B B
ﬁ\#? ?4$£Hﬂﬂi‘bﬂ7
N E6.25% T
RZFZR=HE+H=H
R A0 A

R_EENEZA=+—H>
&R {50.25% T

B FL IR

W TEREWAEN A+ L H B
B (H0.01% T

RoFFERE=A=+—H>
SR {H0.01% T

BB AT B AR
RZFFZ=ZENH—H
MZZEZEHA LA

A A
RZEF=HFZHA=ZH

e 40 1y
T {56 3

FATAL I

BEFFNE=A=F—H

W ZEFWAEN AU H B A

7 AL A 8 B HE 5 2 B

BATALM
(e S Yiei £
w1
170 = % JU4F R B v
wh

REZEEFRFE=A=1—H

S 5 Wt A WY ik —

REZZAE=ZA=ZTHIEEE

25. BEA

Bty ¥ H 2%

Number Amount

B 5k of shares T#x
NOTES HK$’000
2,000,000,000 500,000

(1) (1,920,000,000) -
(1) 1,520,000,000 9,500,000
(2) 38,400,000,000 -
40,000,000,000 10,000,000
(3) - (9,600,000)
(3) 960,000,000,000 9,600,000
1,000,000,000,000 10,000,000
1,488,117,965 372,029

(1) (1,428,593,247) -
2) 1,428,593,247 -
(4) 15,000,000 3,750
(4) 15,000,000 3,750
1,518,117,965 379,529
(3) - (364,348)
(4) 53,900,000 539
(4) 53,900,000 539
(5) 17,796 -
(6) 182,911 2
1,626,118,672 16,261




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

25.

SHARE CAPITAL - continued

Notes:

(1)

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
May 9, 2003, the Company approved to effect a share
consolidation pursuant to which every 25 existing issued and
unissued shares of HK$0.25 each will be consolidated into 1
share of HK$6.25 each. On the same date, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from HK$500,000,000 to
HK$10,000,000,000 by creation of 1,520,000,000 shares of
HK$6.25 each.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
December 3, 2003, the Company approved to effect a share
subdivision pursuant to which every 1 existing issued and
unissued shares of HK$6.25 each will be subdivided into 25
subdivided shares of HK$0.25 each.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
April 19, 2004, the Company approved to effect a capital
reduction pursuant to which the nominal value of the shares of
HK$0.25 each in the share capital of the Company was reduced
to HK$0.01 by cancelling share capital to the extent of HK$0.24
on each of the issued and unissued shares (“Capital Reduction”).
Immediate before the Capital Reduction, the authorised share
capital of the Company was HK$10,000,000,000 divided into
40,000,000,000 shares, of which 1,518,117,965 shares were
issued and were fully paid. Upon the Capital Reduction becoming
effective and on the basis of the same number of the shares in
issue, the paid up share capital of the Company was reduced
from HK$379,529,000 to HK$15,181,000. Immediately after the
Capital Reduction and on the basis of 1,518,117,965 shares in
issue, the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$400,000,000 divided into 40,000,000,000 shares and the
issued capital was HK$15,181,000 divided into 1,518,117,965
shares. On the basis of 1,518,117,965 shares in issue, an amount
of HK$364,348,000 arose on the Capital Reduction and such
amount was credited to share premium account of the Company.
It was further approved that, the authorised share capital of the
Company be increased from HK$400,000,000 to
HK$10,000,000,000 by the creation of 960,000,000,000 new
shares.
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25.

B

(1)

KRR _EEZFERAIA
AT R AR R &> & e
JBE 0y DF AR B HE S 251
W E0.25 m 2 HA B 5
AT B R BEAT A MG A 0F 25 1K
AR E 6.25W 6 2 B o A
H o> A a8 B A 1 5k
1,520,000,000 % %5 i 1 (56.25
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

25. SHARE CAPITAL - continued

Notes:

(4)

Bonus warrants

Each warrant carries an entitlement to subscribe in cash at a
price of HK$0.25 for one ordinary share of the Company from
the date of issue to August 11, 2004. Upon exercise of the
warrants, one bonus share will be issued with each share
subscribed. 53,900,000 (2004: 15,000,000) warrants were
exercised during the year, and accordingly, 53,900,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each amounting to HK$539,000 and
53,900,000 bonus shares of HK$0.01 were issued which resulted
in an increase in the issued share capital of HK$1,078,000 and
an addition of share premium of HK$12,397,000. The new shares
rank pari passu with the existing shares in all respects. The
remaining 11,100,000 Bonus Warrants lapsed on August 11,
2004.

2005 Warrants

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
April 19, 2004, the shareholders of the Company approved a
bonus issue of new warrants (“2005 Warrants”), to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appeared on April
16, 2004 on the basis of one 2005 Warrant for every ten shares
held by such shareholders. Pursuant to which 151,811,795 units
of 2005 Warrants were issued to the shareholders of the Company
at an initial subscription price of HK$0.20 per share as a result
of the bonus issue of new warrants. The warrants lapsed on May
31, 2005.

During the year, registered holders of 2005 Warrants exercised
their rights to subscribe for 17,796 ordinary shares of the
Company at HK$0.20 per share.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding
151,793,999 2005 Warrants exercisable on or before May 31,
2005. Exercise in full of such warrants would result in the issue
of 151,793,999 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

25. SHARE CAPITAL - continued

Notes:

(6)

2009 Warrants

Pursuant to a written resolution of the board of directors on
August 16, 2004, the Company approved a bonus issue of new
warrants (“2009 Warrants”) to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appeared on the register of members on November
5, 2004 on the basis of one 2009 Warrant for every ten shares
held by such shareholders. Pursuant to which 162,593,106 units
of 2009 Warrants were issued to the shareholders of the Company
at an initial subscription price of HK$0.09 per share as a result
of the bonus issue of new warrants. The 2009 Warrants will
expire on September 30, 2009.

During the year, registered holders of 2009 Warrants exercised
their rights to subscribe 182,911 ordinary shares of the Company
at HK$0.09 per share.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding
162,410,195 2009 Warrants exercisable on or before September
30, 2009. Exercise in full of such warrants would result in the
issue of 162,410,195 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

26. RESERVES 26. it
#¥EME
Beorieht  wRGE WARE  THEE  BIRE i 4 At
Investment
property
Share  Goodwill Capital ~ revaluation  Translation
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Deficit Total
T#x T#x Ti#x Ti#x T#x T#x T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(Hf3Ec)
(Note ¢)
THE GROUP REH
At April 1, 2003 RZZZ=FENA—H 331,509 (8,751) 1,479 570 12,531 (254173) 83,165
Revaluation deficit of TEMET B

investment properties - - - (570) - - (570)
Released on disposal of & E B (FTH S
other investments which L) BB 2k

was formerly a subsidiary - 6,715 (1,772) - - - 4,943
Released on partial disposal it & — ¥ It 2 7 4

of a subsidiary HE A R 2 M - (520) - - - - (520)
Issue of bonus shares (Note a) £ 17ALIK (M 3ka) (3,750) - - - - - (3,750)
Net loss for the year KEEBER - - - - - (108,838) (108,838
At March 31, 2004 REZFENE

ZH=+—H 327,759 (2,556) (293) - 12,531 (363,011) (25,570)

Revaluation surplus of RENFEMGRR

investment properties - - - 973 - - 973

Exchange difference on PE TR

translation of overseas EEZERER

operations - - - - 4,454 - 4,454
Gains not recognised in I s R AR

the income statement 2 - - - 973 4,454 - 5,427
Released on disposal of A K (TS

other investments which W) BRI 2 el

was formerly a subsidiary - 6,715 293 - - - 7,008
Exercise of Bonus warrants  £7 {f 4L 1 52 i 1 7

subscription rights At 12,936 - - - - - 12,936
Exercise of 2005 Warrants - RE A ERY

and 2009 Warrants EER-EZNE

subscription rights R IR HE % 5 s 1 18 - - - - - 18
Issue of bonus shares (Note a)  BATALR% (Mfsta) (539) - - - - - (539)
Capital Reduction (Note b) it HI i (Wt zkb) 364,348 - - - - - 364348
Net loss for the year FEEFER - - - - - (12,920)  (12,920)
At March 31, 2005 REFERE

“H=Z1—H 704,522 4,159 - 973 16,985 (375,931) 350,708




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

26.

RESERVES - continued

Note a:

Note b: Details of the Capital Reduction were set out in note 25.

Note c:

31, 2004.

The deficit of the Group includes profits of HK$3,137,000 (2004:
deficit of HK$16,991,000) retained by associates of the Group.

THE COMPANY
At April 1, 2003
Issue of bonus shares
Net loss for the year

At March 31, 2004

Capital reduction

Exercise of Bonus Warrants
subscription rights

Exercise of 2005 Warrants
and 2009 Warrants
subscription rights

Issue of bonus shares

Net profit for the year

At March 31, 2005

The Company had no reserve available for distribution to

Details of the bonus issue were set out in note 25.

Included in goodwill reserve above is a negative goodwill arisen
on acquisition of a subsidiary of HK$4,159,000 (2004:
HK$4,159,000). Negative goodwill of HK$520,000 was released
on partial disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended March

A
AEREZFPHA —H
AT ALK

24 4F 15 ¥ 5

= 2 ULy SR
e A )
7 A 2

A7 = %2 T A R OHE
B %% JUAE BB BCRE
e i

FATALIE

A AF S i A1)

MREFELE=ZH=+—H

shareholders at March 31, 2005.
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25¢

BFSE b A Bl B AR 36 GE 1 SRS B SR
25¢

B 5t 2 i A W —
B A A o oE i Zz #
4,159,000 & (—&F %
4,159,000 £ ) - &
wowmﬁm%ﬁi:f
FEZA=+—HILFEER

— B A | ME AR
[;%o

E}w
W}Eﬁ

J*:|E :

%&%@
ERE e

7% 4E M i 4 £ 45 A 4 1 I A8 N A
i §8 2 3% F)3,137,0004: 7T (*23
T4 k5 4116,991,000% 7T

JB B ik A5 e 22k At
Share
premium Deficit Total
T#x T#x T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
331,509 (309,353) 22,156
(3,750) - (3,750)
- (99,378) (99,378)
327,759 (408,731) (80,972)
364,348 - 364,348
12,936 - 12,936
18 - 18
(539) - (539)
- 19,234 19,234
704,522 (389,497) 315,025

AAFAR BBREZA =+ —
FI Sl 40 7 429K T 1 oK 2l =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

27.  BORROWINGS 27. iR
7 45 b /A
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

“ERLE CFFNE FELFE —FFNE
2005 2004 2005 2004
T# K T#x T# L T# K
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Secured bank loans A R R AT B 74,835 15,000 59,000 15,000
Secured mortgage loans A AT 1% 15 5 K 41,446 9,438 - -
Secured bank overdraft BIRMERITE X 8,316 - - -
124,597 24,438 59,000 15,000

The maturity of the above loans bt A THE R

is as follows: FIWH M

On demand or within one year 238 B — 4F 85,491 15,583 59,000 15,000

More than one year, but not A — 4EH AR
exceeding two years W4 4,774 606 - -

More than two years, but not A T AF E A R
exceeding five years A 11,736 1,993 - -
More than five years B LA 22,596 6,256 - -
124,597 24,438 59,000 15,000

Less: Amount due within one year i : 8 & & T
shown under current — R

liabilities I 301 3K A (85,491) (15,583) (59,000) (15,000)
Amount due after one year — AR B B 2 3K0H 39,106 8,855 - -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

28.

Amounts payable under finance
leases:

Within one year

In the second to fifth years
inclusive

Less: Future finance charge
Present value of lease obligations

Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months (shown
under current liabilities)

Amount due for settlement
after 12 months

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its office equipment
under finance leases. The average lease term is 3 years. For the
year ended March 31, 2005, the average effective borrowing
rate was 6.6%. Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All
leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

S 5 Wt A WY ik —

REZZAE=ZA=ZTHIEEE

28.

¥ AL A AT

A4
THE GROUP

Jot I L &9 49 5K

Minimum
lease payments

J5e A L 29 £ % B AHL
Present value
of minimum

lease payments

CRRBHAE CFERNE SFERAE “FENE
2005 2004 2005 2004
Tt T T Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RS A IET
JE ASh 2 IA
— R 665 - 589 -
B oBEHE
(15 E B M aF) 992 - 912 -
1,657 - 1,501 -
W B AR B S (156) - N/A N/A
A AT HRE 1,501 - 1,501 -
WomEAET
1218 H "
A A 2
HIH (589) -
1248 A % 5| #9351+
2 #KIE 912 -

been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the

lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

AN R 2 B Ty AR R A AR A
R HCE T A 3 Ml o T S A A
P -BME_FFAHE=H=1
—HIEEE TR EERR
6.6JE A B Al R T3t & &) H W
TE o I A RE A0 2 B A [ E AR S
L3z 488 5T 7 BAR AR 4 A 2 B o

A AR T AR A AT AR B
H A AR A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

29.

30.

31.

CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

AT 46 i 5

Convertible debentures

The convertible debentures which were issued at discount by a
subsidiary of the Company bear interest at a rate of 10% per
annum, payable semi-annually and will mature on August 1,
2008 with the coupon value of approximately HK$52,091,000.
The debentures are not callable prior to maturity. These
debentures are convertible into shares of common stock of the
subsidiary at a conversion price of US$5.00 per share.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

The amounts are unsecured, interest free and are not repayable
within the next twelve months from the balance sheet date and,
accordingly, the amounts are shown as non-current.

AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY

The amounts are unsecured, interest free and are not repayable

within the next twelve months from the balance sheet date and,
accordingly, the amounts are shown as non-current.
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29.

30.

31.

LE:Y 3¢
A4
THE GROUP
“RERLY ZRBNA
2005 2004
T#L T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000

47,567 46,650
NN = /NI B i X X
W 2 AR B R0 2 4F
RE—W B H A FE)FEN
A—H > ZEm{E 452,091,000
TG e 7% % S N BRI B M B o i
8] > 7] DA 5,005 7T 22 W8 i
2 B B 2 /) 2 3

&5 KB A R R

AR5 1 B AR 2 )

A% S AKCIE T A A~ G S B B RO
A FEF T W T A i
BI BT EAE-

&5 K B ) 2 ) K

v AR

A% S AKCIE T A A~ G S B B RO

A FEF T W T A i
BI BT EAE-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

32.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
by the Group and movements thereon during the current and

prior reporting years:

THE GROUP
At April 1, 2003 and
March 31, 2004

Charged to income statement H 7% 4F i i %5 B2 371 B

for the year (Note 10)

At March 31, 2005

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
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32, EWEBLH
DN ALEEMER EEIRLER
THA M 2 AR A IR
ARIREE 2 :
JCfils 1 BB
T 1 B R 2% B
Other taxable
Withholding temporary
tax differences Total
(Bt %)
(Note)
T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AR M
HRZEEFZFEWA—H K
CEEBNE=HA=+—H 1,014 - 1,014
(P 5E10) - 496 496
AN EEHE=H=+—H 1,014 496 1,510

At the balance sheet date, the Group has estimated unused tax
losses and other deductible temporary differences of
HK$306,371,000 (2004: HK$282,529,000) and HK$11,690,212
(2004: HK$54,585,000) respectively. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses and other deductible
temporary differences due to the unpredictability of future profit

stream. Included

in the estimated unused tax

losses,

HK$12,185,000 (2004: HK$7,786,000) will be expired in the
year 2024 (2004: year 2023). The remaining amount of
HK$294,186,000 (2004: HK$307,436,000) may be carried

forward indefinitely.

Note:

The balance as at March 31, 2005 comprised deferred taxation

of approximately HK$1,014,000 (2004: HK$1,014,000) regarding
the provision for withholding tax on overseas interest income.
The withholding tax is due to be paid upon remittance of the
income from the respective jurisdictions.

REE B AREE SR AT R B
FH B TE s 48 B = At vT 0 B R 2
#H306,371,000% 70 (. FF U 4 :
282,529,000 Jt) K 11,690,212
Wt (ZEE U4 : 54,585,000
J6) o AR BEHE E H 45 U A AR -
W5 Sl 4 A ol T J 1 B At mT 40 B
BT I 2 B T SRR AL B H 7 -l R
KEABEEBROER -ZF W
A EFNAF: R ) EW
212,185,000% jo (& E P04 :
7,786,000% Jt ) - & F
294,186,000% J& ( — ZF & Y 4 :
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Me: RoFBRAE=A=Z+—H2Z
OB 0O OE £ B OE D
1,014,000 76 (= F ZF Y 4
1,014,000%5 76) » H % ¥ 55 F
B A 0 BLIE 2 B - 5% TH
OB IE A 3% A AR A B A
5 RE [ T M RF S AT o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

33.

34.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade and other payables at
the reporting date:

0 - 60 days ZFE60H
61 — 90 days 61%90H
Over 90 days 90H LA |
Accruals and other payables JRE w5t K T B L Al 78 A+

PROVISION

During the year ended March 31, 2004, certain directors of the
Company (“defendants”) received claims from certain
shareholders of an associate, eVision International, Inc.
(“eVision”), involving the transfer of certain assets from eVision
to a subsidiary of the Company for settlement of debts owed to
the subsidiary in 2001 and the reporting of certain dividend
payments that were made to the plaintiffs pursuant to the terms
of a Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock that was issued by
eVision around November 1999.

After considering legal advice, the management are of the opinion
that the claims are completely without merit, but that settlement
is desirable to avoid the time, expense, and inherent uncertainties
of prosecuting and defending protracted litigation and to resolve
finally and completely the pending and potential claims.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the defendants entered
into a settlement agreement with the plaintiffs for the settlement
of all the claims. As a result of the settlement agreement, the
Group will pay (i) HK$6,739,000 in cash (“Cash Settlement”)
and (ii) transfer of 6% of the issued common shares of eBanker
(“Shares Settlement”) to eVision. The directors of the Company
consider the transfer of the Shares Settlement to have insignificant
impact on the financial position of the Group. Accordingly, a
provision for the only Cash Settlement of HK$6,739,000 was
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

33.

34.

B 5 Be 3Cfib ME 45 5k 5

TR H 2 B Sy R AR A RROA
HHREE AT T

A4

THE GROUP
ZRBHE ZRBWE
2005 2004
T#T T#T
HK$’000 HK$’000
17,397 2,804
1,026 43
1,096 109
19,519 2,956
40,956 32,014

60,475 34,970

18 i

BEZFFWNE=H=1T—HI1t
EESARAFLETESR (T4
B ¥ W & 4 7 eVision
International, Inc. ([eVision] ) #F
FRREZEZE FRERETTH R
eVision[a] 4% A & — K Bt J&§ 2 7] 4
EMETEE DBER X4
&R GZ M E A\ 2 fE TE DL R B R
R # eVision & it — JLIL LA+ —
H 8847 2 B-1 R 51 ] #8548 2 it 22
e R IR 2 A T RS -

REBEFE R EHERR-
ZR AR AR AN > T A A BT (] i
] B B 5 > EL A B i A R Y [H] EE A
T fik e 2 A WY B IR 3R Al e A 58 &
it PR R R e T AE R AR

K E H AR w4 B R BT S AR
Wk LARRBR T A R - AL ENK
0 R 1 W S A () B 426,739,000
WOt (THaRMW ) K&diEeVision
% 2 eBanker 6% 47 % 48 &
(TS FIFRE]) o ARNFERR L
WL T 10 N R ST A R T B S AR
2 RN RE KWL 5 A
Wi 25 HE 18 FE 52 3 4 N fif 6,739,000
T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

35.

MAJOR NON CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

During the year ended March 31, 2005, the Group
acquired 60% of the issued share capital of Anglo-French
Travel Pte Ltd. The consideration was satisfied by cash of
HK$9,000,000 and allotment and issue of 14 million
shares by China Xpress Pte Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group.
Details of the acquisition were set out in note 36.

During the year ended March 31, 2005, the Group entered
into finance lease arrangements in respect of assets with
a total capital value at the inception of the leases of
HK$1,293,000 (2004: nil).

(i) During the year ended March 31, 2004, an
agreement was entered into between the Group
and China EnerSave Limited (“Enersave”), a third
party, pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell
respectively 9% equity interest in each of Online
Credit Card Limited, Online Discount Card Limited
and China Credit Card Limited, subsidiaries of the
Group, for a total consideration of HK$19,300,000
to be satisfied by the allotment and issue of the
shares of Enersave. The corresponding aggregate
net assets attributable to subsidiaries being disposed
of at the date of disposal were amounting to
HK$4,137,000 resulting in a gain of
HK$15,684,000.

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
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FEERERY

35.

(a)

BE_EFZRNHFE=ZH=14—
= I s S N S T
Anglo-French Travel Pte
Ltd. 60% . 4T 4 - fGAH
DL B 429,000,000 7t & H
A L B & A 7 China
Xpress Pte Ltd.[ %% Bl 8% 17
14,000,000 8% B 4y 32 A5F = it
i O i EE 36 o

BE_BFAF=HA=1+—
H IR AR AL R LAY
Bl Wh W &/ A HBEH A
1,293,000 o6 (= F &Y
odE) 2GR R EM
FOR7ge

(i) BE_EZNE=A
=t+—HILFE &
£ E B %5 = J7 China
EnerSave Limited
([ Enersavel ) #]3r
Wk PR AL H
[F) 5 B A R [ B
AFIHAEGEH AR
NECHHEERERE
R 2~ @] & China
Credit Card Limited
% B 9% HE  BAE
19,300,000% 7T 1% LA
fic % ) B2 17 Enersave
ey S AT o B Hh 2 7%
S~ F A & H
9IRS A T I (E
YA E 4,137,000
gt > 7 415,684,000
5 T I A o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

35.

MAJOR NON CASH TRANSACTIONS - continued

(c)

— continued

(ii)

(iii)

During the year ended March 31, 2004, an
agreement was entered into between the Group
and Futuristic Group Ltd. (formerly known as
Futuristic Image Builder Limited) (“Futuristic”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to subscribe a
convertible bond of Futuristic with principal amount
of S$4,000,000 with a call option granted by
Futuristic to subscribe for 22,000,000 Futuristic
shares at an exercise price of S$0.10 each. The
S$$4,000,000 consideration is satisfied by
S$$1,500,000 in cash, transferred 3,050,000
common shares of Global Med Technologies, Inc.
(“Global Med”), a subsidiary of the Group, for an
agreed consideration of $$2,499,999 and transfer
or sub-licence the marketing rights for all
technology, products and services provided by
Global Med under the Exclusive Marketing Rights
Agreement for a nominal consideration of S$1. This
series of transactions resulted in a gain of
HK$7,313,000 from the above transaction.

During the year ended March 31, 2004, the Group
entered into an agreement to dispose of 2% equity
interest or 21,031,927 shares of Global Med China
& Asia Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, to an
independent third party for a consideration of
HK$9,000,000 to be satisfied in full by issuance of
promissory note and resulting in a gain of
HK$9,000,000.

The partial disposals of the abovementioned subsidiaries
have given rise to an aggregate gain on partial disposal of
subsidiaries of HK$31,997,000.

During the year ended March 31, 2004, a promissory
note receivable of HK$19,000,000 included in trade and
other receivables was settled by the allotment of RNA
Holdings Limited’s ordinary shares.

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

FEERERY -

35.

(c)

— %
(ii)

(iii)

R -EEXNE=ZA
=t —HIEFEE R
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Group Ltd. (i 7§
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Builder Limited)
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ek P AEH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

36.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

S 5 Wt A WY ik —

REZZAE=ZA=ZTHIEEE

On October 27, 2004, the Group acquired 60% of the issued
share capital of Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd. The consideration
was satisfied by cash of HK$9,000,000 and allotment and issue
of 14 million shares by a subsidiary of the Group, representing
1.23% of the issued capital of that subsidiary. The acquisition
has been accounted for by the acquisition method of accounting.
The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was

HK$7,094,000.

Net assets acquired:

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in securities — non-current
Trade and other receivables

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Trade and other payables

Bank borrowings

Obligations under finance leases
Minority interests

Goodwill

Total consideration

Satisfied by:

Issuance of shares of a subsidiary
Cash

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration
Bank balances and cash acquired

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the purchase
of a subsidiary

36. WO — R A H
N oEENESA B H>A%E
B i B Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd.
B #IT R A60% - EUHE
9,000,000% JC & H A4 4E [ — K it
J&§ /) i %% BL#817 14,000,000 A% A%
By (AEE A 5% B J 2 =) 2 88 17 i A
1.23%) A o Wi B L 4% € s i B vk
AR - W ELAHEESEL
7,094,000% 7C °
ZERIHAE
2005
Tt
HK$’000
YNGRl |-
LESY =] 2,138
BAERE - ERE 522
B Gy B Ho At E Wi 3k TH 32,139
B 3 SR AT A7 3K 4,770
AT HE A L A 12,555
B G B Ho A RE AT 3k TH (27,873)
AT & (20,021)
Bl & 4 = AT (508)
D B RORE 45 (1,489)
2,233
[ 7,094
HAE 9,327
S AT A
— K M 8 A AT A 327
W4 9,000
9,327
W EE A Z AR AFE:
HaR1ME (9,000)
WA SRITHE A LB & 12,555
WA — KM A\l 2 Bl
RESEHEERA
bRiE e}

The subsidiary acquired during the year contributed
HK$216,719,000 to the Group’s turnover, and HK$2,122,000 to

the Group’s loss from operations.

3,555

AF R A 2 B TR 2 ) 03 s A AR
o B RO OB B H A Kk

216,719,000% 7 & 2,122,000 JC



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued W B5 % Bk — 4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005 BRE-ZFHAE=H=Z1T—HIL4ERE
37.  DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 37. W HHEAE
During the year ended March 31, 2005, the Group disposed of BE_ZFHF=A=1+—H1
the entire issued shares capital of Corporate Bridge Pte. Limited B A 4 M 4 AR5 494,000 7T
(“Corporate Bridge”) to an associate at a consideration of ] — [#] B & 2 7] 5 % Corporate
HK$494,000. The net assets of Corporate Bridge attributable to Bridge Pte. Limited ([ Corporate
the Group as at the date of disposal were as follows: Bridgel) 2B C 847 B A o i th &
H 197 - A £ [ JfE A Corporate Bridge
ZEEFHEINT
“ERHAE
2005
T# L
HK$’000
Property, plant and equipment EN NG 753
Trade and other receivables 54 5 o At B iR TE 231
Bank balances and cash AT R AT M B & 405
Trade and other payables 5 5 Bo Ho A A 3KH (245)
Amount due to a group company &R — LM A A ROE (650)
Total consideration A 494
Satisfied by: A7
Cash B4 494
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: WA B TR
Cash consideration Bl AAE 494
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERATR A LB e (405)
89
The subsidiary disposed of during the year did not have any AR 2 B O F I R AR 4R
material contribution to the Group’s turnover and contributed VB 5 S A AR AT A EE R R M S
HK$2,490,000 to the Group’s loss from operations. 4L B W2 2,490,000 7T 48 4 e
He



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

38.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities of the Group
and the Company were as follows:

Guarantees given to a
financial institution
in respect of banking
facilities granted to a
supplier of the Group

Guarantees given to a
financial institution
in respect of banking
facilities granted to
subsidiaries

(@) LA E—H
b 1 7 T 2
HATE M
W5 4 A 1
A R

(b)  BLKTE 2 ]
i H SR AT
{5 £ 1 S 5
PR AE
1 £
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38. HAAHE

AL RN TR A 2 R

BT
A 4 b N |

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
CRBHAE ZEEWE ZFERhE BENE
2005 2004 2005 2004
T# 5T T 5% T 5% T# 7T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
10,053 - - -

37,064 3,884

The extent of the facilities utilised as at March 31, 2005
by the subsidiaries amounted to HK$33,065,000 (2004:

HK$2,768,000).

Actions were brought by Pricerite Stores Limited and
Pricerite Group Limited respectively against a subsidiary
of the Company in respect of the alleged breach of
agreement for damages which are not quantified. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not practicable at this stage
to determine with certainty the outcome of the litigation.

BHE - ZEHFE=A=1—
H-oflEARE®HARGEE
33,065,000% ¢ (—~FEFE Y
4:2,768,000H 7T) °

B A RN R R E
MR A PR m LS R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

39.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
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39.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease
in respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

—4E R
BB HHE
(458 R W 4E)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
in respect of leased land and buildings. Leases are negotiated

for a term of six years with fixed rental.

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises which

fall due as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

—HFN
BRI
(L 4% H FE Wi 4F)

Leases are negotiated for an average term of five years.

REMERE
7 5 A 2 R RLA

TRES T A SR BUARRAE T 51 40 1H]
[ERL P NTE € RN R E S S gil
)T R HAR ST 2 iR R AR
B

A 4

THE GROUP
—FFHAF “REWAE
2005 2004
T#x T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000
5,451 3,069
9,985 2,698

15,436 5,767

K FHL & 22 ARG A 4R B A BT A
F s R T A 2 A 4 - FH AR
i E 2 N AR A 4 T E

A5 AR 2t ALA
TRAST A B OB F AT LR

RN NER A NI & RN ¢
HERBA . R R AR & T

A 4 1

THE GROUP
ZERIHAE RN
2005 2004
T# T T# T
HK$’000 HK$’000
910 1,040
572 1,414

1,482 2,454

L #) 2 7 2 45 I R R /0y T4



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition T &l #1H K it B %5 ) &

of property, plant and equipment contracted B 2 A
for but not provided in the financial E MY &
statements EABH 32

41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 41.

THE GROUP

At the balance sheet date, the Group pledged bank balances of
HK$4,121,000 (2004: HK$4,076,000) as a security for banking
facilities granted to a subsidiary and as securities for the credit
card business transactions with MasterCard International Inc.

The mortgage loans of HK$41,446,000 (2004: HK$9,438,000)
are secured on the investment properties and land and buildings
of the Group with carrying values of HK$21,119,000
(2004: HK$16,121,000) and HK$48,526,000 (2004: HK$nil)

respectively.

As at March 31, 2005, bank borrowings of HK$83,151,000 (2004:
HK$15,000,000) is secured on investments in securities and bank
balances with carrying values of HK$3,883,000 (2004:
HK$3,957,000) and HK$63,655,000 (2004: HK$23,113,000)

respectively.

THE COMPANY

As at March 31, 2005, bank borrowings of HK$59,000,000 (2004:
HK$15,000,000) is secured on investments in securities and bank
balances with carrying values of HK$3,883,000 (2004:
HK$3,957,000) and HK$58,926,000 (2004: HK$23,113,000)

respectively.
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YA K i
A4
THE GROUP

“RERLY ZRBNA
2005 2004
T#L T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000
8,694 43,033

¥ 7 4K 4

A M

REEH ALEMHTK4,121,0004
JC (= EZEI4E 4,076,000 7T)
ZRATH AR T RATME A —
Bt g 2\ F ME B2 SR AT F B DL S B &
HEFBHBETER REBTR
5y 2 KA

A BRI BR T {H 45 21,119,000
WoT (ZFEFM4E:16,121,0004
Jt) & 48,526,000 70 (- EE M
R 2R EWER TR
M TUAS 44 45 B 341,446,000
JC (= FEFEI4:9,438,000%5 7T) ©

AN EEREFEZHA=+T—H>BK
0 8% T (4 Al £ 3,883,000% Jo
(= FEFMN4 3,957,000 70) K&
63,655,000% JC ( — & F Y 4F :
23,113,000 J0) 2 K/ E KR
1T & A7 > WS $R1T 15 883,151,000
ot (ZEZE U4 15,000,000
JT) o

A i

A EERFEZH=+—H>BEK
08 T (4 Al £ 3,883,000% Jo
(= FEF M4 :3,957,000% 70) K&
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

42,

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
September 28, 1995 for the purpose of providing incentive to
directors and eligible employees, and will be expired on
September 27, 2005. Under the Old Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company may grant options to executive
directors and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company, at a price not less
than 80% of the average closing price of the Company’s shares
on the five trading days immediately preceding the offer of the
options or the nominal value of the shares whichever is the
higher.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Old Share Option Scheme in such
number of shares which, when aggregated with any shares subject
to any other share option schemes, represents 10% of the issued
shares of the Company from time to time. No individuals may
be granted options which would enable him or her to subscribe
for an aggregate of more than 25% of the aggregate number of
shares for the time being issued and issuable under the Old
Share Option Scheme. Upon acceptance of the option, the
grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration. The
options granted were exercisable during the ten year period
commencing after the date on which the options were accepted.

On May 9, 2003, the Old Share Option Scheme was terminated
and a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted to comply with the new amendments to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) regarding share option schemes of
listed companies. As a result, the Company may no longer grant
any further options under the Old Share Option Scheme.
Furthermore, 71,491,739 options granted prior to the termination
of the Old Share Option Scheme were cancelled during the
year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

42,

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible persons of the New
Share Option Scheme include any employee, executive or officer
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including executive
and non-executive directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants, agents, advisers,
shareholders, customers, partners or business associates who, in
the sole discretion of the board of directors of the Company,
have contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
The New Share Option Scheme became effective on May 9,
2003 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, the maximum number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted is such
number of shares, when aggregated with shares subject to any
other share option scheme(s), must not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
persons in the New Share Option Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to the shareholders’” approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any 12-month period, are subject to the shareholders’ approval
in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted from the
date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
on a specified date and ends on a date which is not later than
10 years from the date of the offer of the share options or the
expiry date of the New Share Option Scheme, whichever is
earlier.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 42. IS HE wE B — 4
The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the R RE > TS T AN R
directors of the Company, but may not be less than the highest B EAEERA LD T EEE: (A
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the ANE R R A8 (BES
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer 5 H) A T H O T
of the grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing W T A S (i) AR S B IR e B4R 2
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s 2 BRT A AR S H ORI A T
daily quotations sheet for the five trading days immediately 15 H RS 2 TR B 0 T R
preceding the date of offer of the grant; and (iii) the nominal (i) 4 2> 7] R 4 T8 8 o
value of the Company’s shares.
The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in P2 R RE > TS B A e AE
the Company’s or the Group’s balance sheet until such time as P AT e IR ) A S 2 ) R AN AR
the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the W > % A 2 HAE A R
income statement in respect of the value of options granted in P57 1 I RE A 27 Uk 25 BE A e SR AT
the year. Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting {0 2% F o 7 B TR 4 R S AS N
shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional share T 6 U R I B AT 2 I A R O T
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the (8 %) VE %8 A » T 68 L e 45 T (8
exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares is 2 AT (B 430 R O 385 A8 B o N AT
recorded by the Company in the share premium account. Options {8 3 A 2 Ak BT AN 2 IR 6
which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are E] i S 47 (o I R e 5 1 R I o
deleted from the register of outstanding options.
The following table discloses the details in the Company’s share T B A O OB AT R RE R
options in issue during the year: FE R 2
Old Share Option Scheme 12 ik TR B 5 )
REZZWE REZRIHE
(34 MH—H ZAZ+—H
SHAL gHHM LEgiid i1 BE ¥R A7 B8 A Y i B ¥R A7 B8
Exercise  Outstanding Cancelled  Outstanding
price at during at
Participants Date of grant Exercisable period per share 4.1.2004 the year 3.31.2005
7
HK$
Directors g 4.22.1996 4.22.1996 - 4.21.2005 0.4025 3,071,739 (3,071,739) -
5.15.1997 5.15.1997 - 5.14.2007 0.4512 13,320,000  (13,320,000) -
10.26.2997 10.26.1997 - 10.25.2007 0.3064 53,800,000 (53,800,000) -
Employees & 5.15.1997 5.15.1997 - 5.14.2007 0.4512 1,300,000  (1,300,000) -
71,491,739 (71,491,739) -
New Share Option Scheme 397 I B B 551
REFZWE REZRNE
(31 MR- ZHE+—H
SHEAL gHAM LEgiis ] fr i WALE AR RS W AR AT B
Exercise  Outstanding Granted Cancelled  Outstanding
price at during during at
Participants Date of grant Exercisable period per share 4.1.2004 the year the year ~ 3.31.2005
#
HK$
Directors ~ #% 11.1.2004 11.1.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1600 ~ 30,000,000 ~ 30,000,000
11.15.2004 11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1616 - 216,000,000 - 216,000,000
Employees B8 11.15.2004 11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1616 - 40,000,000  (4,500,000) 35,500,000
- 286,000,000  (4,500,000) 281,500,000




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
No share option was exercised during the year.

Consideration of HK$1 was received from each of the option

holders, at the time that the options were accepted.

In addition, the outstanding options to subscribe for shares in
the capital of the subsidiaries of the Company, granted to certain
directors of the Company and the employees of the Group under
the share option schemes of the subsidiaries are as follows:

@) eBanker USA.com, Inc. (“eBanker”)

In January 1999, the board of directors of eBanker
authorised the eBanker 1999 Incentive and Nonstatutory
Stock Option Plan, with effective from January 18, 1999
through January 17, 2009, unless sooner terminated. The
eBanker’s board of directors granted to certain eBanker’s
directors, options to purchase 620,000 shares of eBanker’s
common stock at US$3.00 per share, exercisable

immediately and for a period of ten years.

The following table presents the activity for options
outstanding as of March 31, 2005 and March 31, 2004:

Directors
Employees

Total

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

42. B HE T — A
A A 7 4 AT AT B ST R A AT o

5 T SR R AN A e A A E
I SCAHAAE 138 0T -

BEAR > AR 2 MR A 22 =] ) Je 23 7]
WG HERT® > o T AN R E R
LA SR R B 432 AT R R M R
O T A H AR 2 1 AR AT o R S A -

(i) eBanker USA.com, Inc.
([ eBanker] )

A —JLILJLAE— H > eBanker
# 4 & B2 RE I 4T eBanker
19994% B K& IF 1 & i i RE
whE > B IF AT &1k 5 A
H—JULLE—A+/AH R
2EENFE—HTLHIE
I A %% - eBanker® 3 &
] 4 T eBanker® &5 % F %
JBCHE - AT LA 3,00 00 2
18 # %8 i eBanker 620,000
3 98 - 5% 8 I T T B
7 H R TR

TEEIR - EERF A
=+ —HE_FEFNE=H
=+ —H MR RE
3

) N
WH—H-
EENA
ZA=Z+—HRK
“EELAY
ZH=+—H
Z W B A B H
Number of
share options
at 4.1.2003,
3.31.2004
and 3.31.2005

600,000
20,000

620,000
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005 BE ZFU4E=ZHA=1+—HI1L4EE
42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 42. B HE T — A
(@) eBanker USA.com, Inc. (“eBanker”) — continued (i) eBanker USA.com, Inc.

([ eBanker] ) — #j

The following table presents the composition of options TREIR -FEZLFEZN
outstanding and exercisable as of March 31, 2005: =t HZRITH R F1T
7 J IR HEE 19
W A AT 18 ok It pE LREiR:d .3
Options Outstanding Exercisable Options
U OB 4 S H RS A7 4539+ i B i RS *
YH
Number
Number of of share
share options Price* Life* options Price*
% %
Us$ Us$
Total At 620,000 3.00 T4 620,000 3.00
5 years
* Price and life reflect the weighted average exercise price * (B 5 R 1718 15 43 I )2 e
and weighted average remaining contractual life T 29 77 18 1% 4
respectively. -2 i R A HY -
There was no movement in share options granted by 9 {0 4 B N eBankerd% i 2
eBanker during both years. i G 349 40 AT o] 5 ) o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(i)

Global Med Technologies, Inc. (“Global Med”)

In the second quarter of 2001, Global Med adopted the
2001 Stock Option Plan (2001 Plan”). The 2001 Plan
provides for the issuance of options to purchase up to 15
million registered shares of common stock to employees,
officers, directors and consultants of Global Med. Options
may be granted as incentive stock options or as
nonqualified stock options. Only employees of Global
Med are eligible to receive incentive options. The 2001
Plan will expire on December 28, 2010. In June 2003,
the board of directors of Global Med approved a change
in the 2001 Plan. The board of directors of Global Med
authorised an amendment to the 2001 Plan reducing the
number of common shares reserved and authorised for
issuance by 5 million. Effective in June 2003, the total
number of common shares approved for issuance under
the 2001 Plan as authorised by the Board was reduced
from 15 million to 10 million. Global Med filed an
amendment to the existing S-8 registration statement for
the 2001 Plan to effect this change on May 20, 2004. As
of March 31, 2005, options to purchase 3.036 million
shares of Global Med’s common stock at a weighted
average exercise price of US$0.66 per share were
outstanding under the 2001 Plan, of which 1.225 million
options to purchase shares were exercisable at March 31,
2005. Options granted under the 2001 Plan vest on a
straight-line basis, based on schedules as determined by
the board of directors of Global Med upon grant and
generally expire 10 years after the grant.

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

Ji JB i it B — 5

42.

(i)

Global Med Technologies,
Inc. ([ Global Med] )

ZFF—MEH 2 Global
Med$F # — F- F — 4F i i 1
8 (T D F®E — G
#1)  —EEEFEEE
i Global Med{E & ~ &= #& Ik
IR ) R )
BRI £ 15,000,000 55T
e 5 R 2 B R o B A R T
L) 5% Jh i e A kT 1F =X
W Ko R A Global
MedlE B4 & B E A H
SRR —BE —4EF
g —F-FF+ A=
TNH E R R R =
7N H > Global Med# % & #t
WER _FFE—F5H# -
Global Med# & & it i 1&
W FE—FFE WD A
PR 88 B R PR AT
5,000,000/ AL - B %
FEZAFENAR EFRGRHE
2 BT T EE T A UE
BATZ E E B A H A
15,000,000 HI ¥ =
10,000,000/ > Global Med
B —FE—FFEHZHE
S-8E LA 2 B FT TR - LU
i BB U R F AR
HZ+HAEK - R EER
FZA=Z+—H BE %
F— T E > TN
A7 {8 {8 1 B 0.663% JC 78 %
Global Med 3,036,000 8%
B 2 T T RE o R AT
H P 1,225,00015% 1% 1 RE
AR CEERAFZA=Z+—
HAigfio g —FF 45
B37 2 W R T T AR
FLHE #3E Global Med#
B IR 7 2 IR R 2R
TAERZN > — A H A
% 104F i 1 -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(i)

Global Med Technologies, Inc. (“Global Med”) -

continued

In June 2003, Global Med’s board of directors approved
the 2003 Stock Option Plan (“2003 Plan”). The 2003 Plan
provides for the issuance of stock options exercisable to
purchase up to 5 million shares of Global Med’s common
stock to employees, officers, directors and consultants of
Global Med. The board of directors of Global Med also
approved the inclusion of options to purchase
approximately 4.525 million shares under the 2003 Plan
that were issued to such persons prior to the adoption of
the 2003 Plan and lacked registration rights. Global Med
filed an S-8 registration statement to register the 5 million
shares issuable under the 2003 Plan on May 20, 2004.
The range of the exercise prices of the 4.525 million
options is US$0.45 to US$1.50 per share. The weighted
average exercise price of these options is US$0.68 per
share. As of March 31, 2005, there were approximately
4.432 million options exercisable under the 2003 Plan.

The Second Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan
(Plan) provides for the issuance of options to purchase up
to 2.2 million registered shares of common stock to
employees, officers, directors and consultants of Global
Med. Options may be granted as incentive stock or as
nonqualified stock options. Only employees of Global
Med are eligible to receive Incentive Options. As of May
31, 2000, options could no longer be issued under this
Plan. As of March 31, 2005, options to purchase 1.120
million shares of Global Med’s common stock at a
weighted average exercise price of US$1.21 per share
were outstanding under the Plan, of which 1.120 million
options to purchase shares were exercisable at March 31,
2005.
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42.

(i)

Global Med Technologies,
Inc. ([ Global Med| ) — &%

W ZEE=ZH75 H > Global
Med# F & it BT =
HEERERE B ([ FE=
FHE) B E=FFEE
15 [ Global Medf& B ~ & #&
Wk B~ 38 g5 KRk ot P EE AT
n] 7 8% 5 £ 5,000,000 %
Global Med¥ % % = B 1%
HE o Global Med= & & Rt
WSt ARE 2T =45
BB T = A
Rl 4 B HE RE T 1) 5% 5 N
BEAT A R M 44,525,000/
& 17y 2 B8 B 8 © Global Med
BN -EZENFERLA +H
MER _FR=FFHET
Al ¥ %17 2 5,000,000 % A%
B S-8 % B M fF AE o
4,525,000 i B i 2 47
B4 45 1% 0.453 T E1.50
2 0 o w4 5 M I AE 2 in HE 7
YT (A8 75 B B2 0.683E 6 »
MR oEELF=ZA=1+—
H i T =F50#
#14,432,0004 i B 4 °] T
AT ffio

B AT BCE BT o B R
wH#) ([5F#]]) B7E M Global
Med g & ~ = SRk B - 3 5 1
A o R AT AT R R 2
2,200,000 8% % 7o 5 48 B 2
i FSE R o i TR AT LA S8 R B
JC AR B I 1E X R T I
H o HH Global Med{E B A
G G M A B 5 R I A
W —FEEFHFEHHA =T
— H o T AR B ST
BT - R _FEFEHE=A =
T —H > REFHE AT 4%
REF- AT A A e 1.21 3500
2 851,120,000/ Global
Med 35 38 I 2 i I A ) o 7
18> H A 1,120,000 %
HERT R R FEHE=A =
T—H T LT
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(i)

Global Med Technologies, Inc. (“Global Med”) -

continued

Global Med also periodically grants options to purchase
shares of registered common stock. The shares underlying
these options are not registered under the Exchange Act
1933. As of March 31, 2005, there were outstanding
options to purchase 245 thousand shares of common stock
at a weighted average exercise price of US$2.08 per share.

During the two years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004
Global Med issued 750 thousand and 68 thousand stock
options respectively.

For the year ended March 31, 2005

The following table presents the activity for options for
the year ended March 31, 2005:

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

42. Nk B A T A — 4

(i)

Global Med Technologies,
Inc. ([ Global Med| ) — &

Global Med7i & #1 3% i 7]
Wi B B R R 2 B R RE
i F5E R BT 9 B 22 IR R 01
Xk A M3 Exchange Act
193385 A _EENE=
HA=+—H>al & hmhEF15
A7 18 4 % 2.08 3 ot 58 1§
245,000 8 & 4 1 2 ik I RE
W R AT o

BEFZTZHFER _FEFN
E=ZH=+—H8 1k W45
B> Global Med%r Bl 2 47
750,0001% & 68,000 Jif§ i%
HE o

WEEER =)= —
H 1L 1

RIS EE R
A= — 1AL 4 A B
LR

Jik B HE W H
Number of share options

REFRNAE EWAES RORRIAE
KU A o fe WH—H ERgREL Bk ES ZA=ZT—H

Exercised/

forfeited/

Granted cancelled
Exercise At during during At
Category price* 4.1.2004 the year the year 3.31.2005

e
Us$
Directors HH 0.73 450,000 - (175,000) 275,000
Employees = 0.78 8,304,942 750,000 (230,500) 8,824,442
Total st 0.78 8,754,942 750,000 (405,500) 9,099,442
i DBt 4 % H U
Number of

share options Price*
e
Us$
Outstanding, beginning of year A 1 R AT 8,754,942 0.76
Granted E & 750,000 1.05
Exercised e AT (245,000) 0.72
Forfeited/cancelled E% i ERE (160,500) 0.69
Outstanding, end of year A A A& R AT E 9,099,442 0.78
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42.  SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 42, Ji B HE T I —

(i)  Global Med Technologies, Inc. (“Global Med”) - (ii)  Global Med Technologies,
continued Inc. ([ Global Med] ) — %
The following table presents the composition of options TREIR -FELFEZN
outstanding and exercisable as of March 31, 2005: =+ — B M RATH KT AT

o S B 2 NG
¥ A A7 15 ) B B LREigid 32
Options Outstanding Exercisable Options
A7 48 R I Ji JB¢ % H ik AT B Ji JBC B H e s *
Number of Number of
Range of exercise price share options Price* Life* share options Price*
e e e
Us$ Us$ US$
0.45-0.55 194,000 0.47 8 62,000 0.49
0.56-1.00 7,638,498 0.65 5.4 6,112,164 0.67
1.01-1.50 729,000 1.29 3.2 302,332 1.18
1.51-2.00 313,694 1.78 2.7 321,694 1.78
2.45-3.00 210,750 2.51 2.0 210,750 2.51
3.75 13,500 3.75 1.3 13,500 3.75
Total %5t 9,099,442 0.78 5.3 7,022,440 0.80
* Price and life reflect the weighted average exercise price * B ¥ S AT 1 3] 73 1 I ke
and weighted average remaining contractual life TP 7T 12 e T #E
respectively. V-1 i iR A H] o
For the year ended March 31, 2004 HEEEWE=ZH =1 —
H 1k 4
The following table presents the activity for options for TREIEEREREE %
the year ended March 31, 2004: FME=A=+—H L4
Z R
Jik B HE W H
Number of share options
KU i RoFR=4 SEMB ERORZERWAE
WH—H Bl =HA=1—H
Forfeited/
Granted cancelled
Exercise At during during At
Category price* 4.1.2003 the year the year 3.31.2004
e
Us$
Directors Ea 0.77 450,000 - - 450,000
Employees & & 0.76 8,461,942 68,000 (225,000) 8,304,942
Total mwt 0.76 8,911,942 68,000 (225,000) 8,754,942
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 42,
(ii) Global Med Technologies, Inc. (“Global Med”) -
continued
Outstanding, beginning of year A 1 R AT
Granted S
Forfeited/cancelled SREY GRS
Outstanding, end of year TP A 5 1 R AT
The following table presents the composition of options
outstanding and exercisable as of March 31, 2004:
v AR AT 15 i IR
Options Outstanding
A7 15 Ae S 0 Sk JBe i 9 H e A+
Number of
Range of exercise price share options Price*
e e
Us$ Us$
0.45-0.55 104,000 0.48
0.56-1.00 7,815,498 0.65
1.01-1.50 289,000 1.15
1.51-2.00 322,194 1.78
2.45-3.00 210,750 2.51
3.75 13,500 3.75
Total  #5F 8,754,942 0.76
* Price and life reflect the weighted average exercise price

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL
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(i)

Global Med Technologies,
Inc. ([ Global Med| ) — &%

Jik Db i ¥ H 4%

Number of
share options Price*
X
Us$
8,911,942 0.75
68,000 0.68
(225,000) 0.54

8,

754,942 0.76

TREIR FFNE=A
=+ — H R LA AT
o S B 2 NG

LEgigid 12 ]

Exercisable Options

47 15 390+

Life*

8.8
6.1
4.2
3.7
3.0
2.3

5.9

Jik JB¢ B %k H e #
Number of
share options Price*
e
US$
42,000 0.49
4,315,331 0.71
257,000 1.14
322,194 1.78
210,750 2.51
13,500 3.75
5,160,775 0.88

and weighted average remaining contractual life
respectively.

No charge is recognised in the income statement in respect
of the value of options granted by Global Med for both
years.

* B 1 T A7 (0 71 20 ) I 1t
TR 249 17 (18 2% I #E
14 i B AT A

4 48 B 71 5 4% 5 Global
Med5% th 22 fif i B A5 (T i
i HR il S i o
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43. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes (“Defined Contribution Schemes”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong and Singapore. The assets of the Defined
Contribution Scheme of Hong Kong are held separately from
those of the Group and is under the control of trustees. Where
there are employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. The assets of
the Deferred Contribution Scheme of Singapore is regulated and

managed by the Singapore Government.

Effective from December 1, 2000, the Group has joined the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the
rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at the rate
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group in respect
of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the

contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the
Defined Contribution Schemes charged to the consolidated
income statement represent contributions paid or payable to the
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

For the year ended March 31, 2004, the total amount of forfeited
contribution, which arose upon employees leaving the retirement
benefit scheme and which are available to reduce the
contributions payable in the future years was HK$13,873. No
contribution was forfeited for the year ended March 31, 2005.

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year ended March 31, 2005, the Group has
placed certain deposits with American Pacific Bank (“AP
Bank”). The principal outstanding as at March 31, 2005
and the relevant bank interest income earned during the
year are HK$11,448,376 (2004: HK$9,657,589) and

HK$183,034 (2004: HK$289,304) respectively.

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

43.

44.

S8 Pk i A it

AEEDBEREELTMESE
1% B B2 O R A OB IR AR R R
#O(TEREMA G #E ) FHEEH
Sk at # 2 & A A RE N BLAR AR
B O B R A i B A A
U NRER A IR € 4]
R DA AR A 42 1 AR 2 A3 < i
W e R A AR 2 T g
B B R e

HoZEEEFTH—HR A%
7 A T A R B2 g A A
Mawt# (TR est# ) |
R O OAR A o R B T
e o1l > 1 38 ol P B e w A R
At Ml o o A < w2 T B S
E N A2 4 7 sU B A AR 1 E )
BH 45 A o AR AR 98 B B R 2 BRLA
1 £ I B B ZH LU G 2 2 b
24 qia) 1 ) (36 o A 4R o) 9 o A <
B 2 M — AR B 1R % R B 2 RLE
4 3K o Sl 406 62 s 3 Ml ) DA 9 R
A AE BT E AT 2 e

SE R AT # A 2 AB K AR R R
BN B W AR MR AN B - AR IR A
A 1 72 1 5% 4 R LR 2 A B
it 7 2 & 2 PEE 5

HE_FEFNE=A=+—HI
ERE KR BB B R4 A 5H# =
AT R DA D R AR 4R R HE AT
2B R £ 13,873 0T ©
BE-FFHAF=A=+—H1
A B NI 4 3K OB R i -

B BN - 22 5

() BE_FZEHF=A=1—
H ik E > & £ 3R
American Pacific Bank
(AP Bankl) f£f # T 4%
HAZEEAFE=ZH =+
— H M ARAS 4 R AR A AR 2
A BB B A S A
11,448,376 (ZFE N
% :9,657,589% ©) K
183,034% 50 (B F N4
289,304 JC) °
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44.

45.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

(b)

Notes:

()

(i)

During the year ended March 31, 2005, the Group
disposed of the entire share capital of Corporate Bridge
to Futuristic Group Limited, an associate of the Group,
for a consideration of HK$494,000. Details of the
transaction are set out in note 37.

Mr. Chan Heng Fai, a director and substantial shareholder of the
Company, was also the director of AP Bank.

Mr. Chan Tong Wan was a director of AP Bank.

The terms of the above transactions were mutually agreed by the
parties involved.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a)

On May 13, 2005, the Group entered into a conditional
heads of agreement with Startech Electronics Ltd
(“Startech”), a company incorporated in the Republic of
Singapore and its shares are listed on The Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited to which the Group
agreed to sell approximately 10.5% equity interest in
Online Credit Card Limited for a consideration of
S$7,000,000 to be satisfied by the issuance of a
convertible bond of Startech. A summary of the terms of
the agreement is set out in a circular of the Company
dated June 9, 2005. The transaction is still subject to,
among other things, the approval of shareholders of
Startech.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a bonus issue of
2006 Warrants was made on the basis of 1 warrant for 10
ordinary shares held on July 15, 2005. Each 2006 Warrants
entitles its holder to subscribe in cash at a price of
HK$0.16 for one ordinary share of the Company, at any
time from the date of issue to July 31, 2006.
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44.

45.

(b)

Bff 5

(i)

(i)

WE_FFNLFE=H=1—
H Lk 48 A B [ ) HC I
/A ] Futuristic Group Limited
i £ Corporate Bridge2:
Je A > FAE £ 494,000 It -
3oy wE G B M EE37 o

/NG Py o8 e oy ) UL
i 45 A2 IR £ AP BankZ ¥ o

W %% 25 55 4 5 AP BankZ 3 5 o

b 32 By 2 AR T A B R A A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at March 31,
2005 are as follows:

C#iT K
sk W e Bt ReA
W &S 2 W 4 4 BEM wk W ¥ A
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital
Anglo-French Travel w3 1,800,000 /il 3% 7T
Pte. Ltd. Singapore $$1,800,000
China Credit Card Limited 3% J& % B & 1003 7T
British Virgin Us$100
Islands
China Credit Singapore Pte. ok 13,417,282 ¥k 7o
Limited Singapore $$13,417,282
China Xpress Pte Ltd. w38 5,670,002 il % 70
Singapore 5$$5,670,002
eBanker USA.com, Inc. L H B A R - 50 AL
(B 5Ed) United States 26,651% 7t
(Note d) of America — AR FI 48 5 ik
(K &ka)
Common stock
US$26,651
1 Series A
preferred stock
(Note a)
3,500,000/
AAR BT 4
AT I [m] 48 5 i
3,500,000
Series AA
Convertible
redeemable
preferred stock
Global Growth Management, mEx 1,0003 ¢
Inc. Canada US$1,000

Global Med China & Asia SEELREE  1,051,596,352 70
Limited (Fff5Ed) British Virgin HK$1,051,596,352

(Note d) Islands

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

46. W& 2 vl BEH

BOFEREZ =R AR

GIER () FAiPa 3 I
AR B OB AT
JBe Ak il ¥ A
i i B % EUREH
W% IH] 4%

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered capital
held by the Company  Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
% %

- 60 Jife 2 A 3
Travel and tourist
agent

- 91 BE R
Investment holding

100 - RE R
Investment holding

- 98.8  HEMEM
Investment holding

- 41 MR &
Financial investment
- 100

- 100

- 100 MERE

Property investment

- 98 BE R
Investment holding



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued W B5 % Bk — 4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005 BRE-ZZEF=ZA=1T—HILFE
46.  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued 46. W 2 vl BE 2 - 8
C#iT K AR R
kW SR B A JBe A Sk il ¥ A
W &S 2 W 4 4 BEM ol I 2 A T i B R EX =31
W% IA] 4%
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation/ Issued and fully issued capital/
registration/ paid share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
% %
Global Med International HEETHE 1,000% JC - 100 & PR
Limited (Bt 5¥d) British Virgin US$1,000 Investment holding
(Note d) Islands
Global Med Technologies FEHE A R 267,890% 7t - 40.5 5 R )
Inc. (fftiEd) United States US$267,890 Medical software
(Note d) of America development
16 S8 Bl G AT PR A i 2¥ 0 100 - B BE
Heng Fung Capital Hong Kong HK$2 Securities
Company Limited investment
Heng Fung Capital, Inc. FHE A FH 15,0003 7t 100 - BETR
United States US$15,000 Investment holding
of America
Heng Fung Capital mEx (B3EC) 100 - WERE
(Canada) Inc. Canada (Note ¢) Property investment
Heng Fung Equities, Inc. P B A R 15,0003 7t - 100 R RE
United States US$15,000 Securities
of America investment
Heng Fung Underwriter ik 2T 100 - HHRHE
Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Securities trading
e 1 IR (BRI i NRIEAE 1,000,000 T - 100  fEHRER
AR A (HFED) The People’s HK$1,000,000 Card processing
Heng Li Card Consultancy & Republic of
Service (Shenzhen) Co. China
Ltd. (Note b)
Ichi Ni San Enterprises i 10,0003 7T 100 - ES R
Company Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Property holding
AR EARA A it 1,500,000 7t 100 - BavE
Keng Fong America Hong Kong HK$1,500,000 Investment holding

Enterprises Limited

AL ISR A A R A it 10,000% 7t 100 - BaTE R
Keng Fong Canada Hong Kong HK$10,000 Investment holding

Enterprises Limited



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

46.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

B )i 2 7 4

Name of subsidiary

Keng Fong Foreign
Investment Co. Ltd.

HEE I A A S A PR )
Keng Fong Malaysia
Enterprises Limited

BaEERRERAR
Online Credit Card Limited

G ERRAA
Online Credit Limited

BEERARAH
Online Discount Card
Limited
PeopleMed.com, Inc.
(B £ d)
(Note d)

Rasa Sayang Limited

SingXpress Pte Ltd.

SRI Group Limited

ol W S
BRI

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

EH A R
United States
of America

ik
Hong Kong

ik
Hong Kong

ik
Hong Kong

ik
Hong Kong

EF AR
United States
of America

ik
Hong Kong

EmIlIR3

Singapore

YR IR L5
British Virgin
Islands

BEigep e
BRBAS
ol I 2 A

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

250,000 7t
US$250,000

100,000% JC
HK$100,000

9 i
120,000,000 7t
7% 3 1% A A

W B ] B g
13,866,230% 7T
Ordinary
HK$120,000,000
7% Non-voting
cumulative
redeemable
preference shares
HK$13,866,230

1,260,000 7T
HK$1,260,000

12,000,000 7t
HK$12,000,000

9,040% 7T
US$9,040

10,000% 7T
HK$10,000

800,000 fin 3 7t
$$800,000

13%£7C
US$1

Directly

W 5 A Bk —
RERREAFZA = kAR

46. W 2 vl BE 2 - 8

AL ) i bk S B AT
JBe A ik il A
i i b %

M IA] 4%
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

% %

- 100

100 -

- 100

100 -

- 100

- 100

Indirectly

EUREH

Principal activities

B S W& Y
Property investment
and development

B PR

Investment holding

& AR M5

Credit card services

B PR

Investment holding

B =R RE
Discount card
services

BRR 2

Medical healthcare

HHME
Securities
investment

B PR

Investment holding

B PR

Investment holding



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

46.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

C#iT &
sk e e Bt ReA
W& 2 W 4 4 EERE ] wk: I ¥ A
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital
Sure World Capital LHEELHES 50,0003 7C
Limited British Virgin US$50,000
Islands
R ERARA A it 600,000 7T
Wai Kin [nvestment Hong Kong HK$600,000

Company Limited

Notes:

a.

The Group holds a 41% interest in eBanker and control equivalent
proportion of voting right. In addition, the Group holds a share
of series A preferred stock, which entitles the Group to 50% of
the vote for the Board of Director of eBanker. Therefore, eBanker
is accounted for as a subsidiary.

Heng Li Card Consultancy Service (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. is a
wholly-owned foreign enterprise.

As of the balance sheet date, no part of the capital has been
contributed.

The year end date of these subsidiaries is December 31,
accordingly the financial information of these subsidiaries that
consolidated into the Group’s consolidated financial statements
are drawn up to that year end date. Adjustments have been
made for the effect of significant transactions or other events
that occur between January 1 to March 31.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results or net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

S 5 Wt A WY ik —
WECRRIEAEZ = WL

46. W 2 vl BE 2 - 8
AR B C B AT
JBe A ik il A
i i b % EUREH
H# IH] 4%

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered capital

held by
Directly
%

100

100

the Company
Indirectly
%

Principal activities

- B PR

Investment holding

- B PR

Investment holding

a. A% 4 8 15 4 eBanker 41%7 35 >
SIf7 2 1 [F] % LB 2 B SRR 5y
S AREEFA — AR IE T
B BT ALEE550%
eBanker#E 5 & % 5 HE o A It
eBanker%! 1 [} & 2~ ] -

b. MR Rl ARES (RIID A R
R By AN AR

C. TS H SR A AT AT A
d. A PACIPACE i
H="4—H> B %% Mg 2
FITEA L B 2 A5 B R R A
i FE A Z BB ORI R R AR
HHIL-ArmAD#—H—H
BEZA=ZtTHBEEZERE
oy B A T OH 2 5 B

2 B & > R A R SO 4 AT AT
I3 o] Sl 6 A ) oA AT o 2 5 W O

ERINMERR L LB BALE
BEMAEEFHEHI AL ER
Wit Jg 2~ 7] o S5 a8 A% o i 5 51 A
WY JE 2 i) R A 8 5 W A A T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued W B5 % Bk — 4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005 BE ZFU4E=ZHA=1+—HI1L4EE
47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATE 47. FEBEE A 6 B
Particulars of the Group’s principal associate at March 31, 2005 MREEERE=ZH =+ —H &%
are as follows: B E SN A 2 R
RN A AN A WERE CBET
B8 A 4R BXLEY | R FEEE

Proportion of
nominal value of

Place of issued capital
incorporation/ indirectly held
Name of associate operation by the Company Principal activity
Futuristic Group Ltd. B e 45.6% BH & &
Singapore ENA GRS
Furniture builder
and interior design
contractor
The above table lists the principal associate of the Group which, ERINBEFRR TR BALE
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or MEMKEEFHIALE
net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates would, W8 oy W) o R ER Yy > i W 51 LAt
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive Wi 7 > ) R 0 R e A TR TR o
length.
48. NET CURRENT ASSETS AND TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT  48. i B ¥ 7 i 4 B Y6 73 480 0V 9 WA
LIABILITIES o £1 4%
At as March 31, 2005, the net current assets and total assets less W oEERNEZH=Z+—H > ARK4E
current liabilities of the Group are HK$318,837,000 (2004: P Ui A N (E D A AR (E
HK$337,902,000) and HK$469,304,000 (2004: HK$423,956,000) T E) A 5 75 318,837,000 7T
respectively. (—FZ 4 :337,902,000% 7¢)

}%469,304,000% JC ( ZFF Y 4
423,956,0004% JC) °



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS

Turnover

Loss from operations

Finance costs

Impairment loss recognized
in respect of interest
infamount due from
an associate

Shares of results of
an associate

Gain on deemed disposal of
a subsidiary

Gain on deemed disposal of
preference shares of
a subsidiary

Gain on disposal of
an associate

Gain on partial disposal of
subsidiaries

Gain on deemed disposal of
an associate

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation

(Loss) profit before
minority interests

Minority interests

Net (loss) profit for the year

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets

Total liabilities
Minority interests

Shareholders’ funds

e
BEH

R
B A
L 7 % 7] HE
i/ KRR
W (s 15

34— R W
CES

BN & — B
N Z W AR
WLAE ) & — BB
Ak il
i

o — [ B O R
Z M i

85 B U 2 ] 3 2y
e i 2 et
AR & — W
NCIPA €

BRBLAT (5 4R) i A1
BLIH

Rt D BIBR
4 AT ()
i A1)

b B AR E 2

AL (&)
i A1)

¥ & U
BEE
BAR
Bl e R 2

R & 4

W 5 X5 R B 2

BRE=ZA=1—HILEE
For the year ended March 31,

CERRAE CFFNE CRFEF CEFOHE CFEF
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
T# T T#x T#x T#x T# T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
819,777 561,105 142,594 60,685 67,621
(27,248) (140,049) 133,770 (71,607) (86,049)
(9,215) (8,532) (7,331) (6,925) (9,063)

- - - (412) (5,327)

3,137 1,424 (1,562) -
11,118 - 13,823 30,964 -
- - 12,330 -

6,070 - - -

- 31,997 12,515 -

- 5,062 18,061 -
(16,138) (110,098) 181,606 (47,980) (100,439)
(496) - 470 89 610
(16,634) (110,098) 182,076 (47,891) (99,829)
3,714 1,260 8,371 8,183 -
(12,920) (108,838) 190,447 (39,708) (99,829)

R=A=+—H
As at March 31,

CERRRE CFFNE CRFEE CEFOHE CREF
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
T#xL T#x T#xL T#x T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
622,684 474,595 567,803 372,920 318,270
(245,715) (108,837) (103,687) (142,188) (89,155)
(10,000) (11,799) (8,922) (1,965) -
366,969 353,959 455,194 228,767 229,115




PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
AT MARCH 31, 2005

THEYEBRE
Ro-ZRHEE=ZA=Z1T—H

o HEHAHE (%) B
Location Effective % held Type
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES # &M%

No. B503, 4821 100 320

53rd Street, Delta, British Apartment
Columbia, Canada and No. 1281

Alberni Street, Vancouver

British Columbia, Canada

981 Nelson Street 100 B T
Vancouver B WA E
British Columbia Single-storey ground
Canada floor school/office unit
No. 35 North Canal Road 100 N/
Singapore Office premises

o ik B (%) |
Location Square metre  Effective % held Type
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE #fid ¥

7 ik JURE U 30 100 HLAL
HESCAE B 2258 Car parking
E LR ET R space
22 % 245F H AT

Car parking spaces Nos. 22 to 24 on

lower G/F., Inverness Villa

No. 22 Inverness Road

Kowloon Tong, Hong Kong

o RN B (%) |
Location Square foot Effective % held Type
LAND AND BUILDINGS 38 B #

7 20,090 100 WA EYE
4t £ Office
JE R E 51098 premises
K JE 5

5/F., Island Place Tower
510 King's Road

North Point

Hong Kong

AL&Y

Lease term

/X
Freehold

/X
Freehold

LAY

Medium term lease

AL&Y

Lease term

TR £
Medium term
lease

AL&Y

Lease term

TR £
Medium term
lease



@C redit

Card Limited

CHINA Consumer Finance
o

CREDIT
CARD

LOGISTIES ETD

/ﬁﬁ;r]m\

Corporate Finance

BANKER .CoMm

Travel & Card Services

* Western Australian Airline

ANGLO-FRENCH TRAVEL PTE LTD

FUTURISTIC
Merchant Banking

@ GLOBAL MED
» TECHNOLOGIES





<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 1.8)
  /CalRGBProfile (ColorMatch RGB)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Sheetfed Uncoated v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.3
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Saturation
  /DetectBlends true
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile (Web Graphics Defaults)
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSong-Light
    /CFangSongGB5-Light
    /CGuLi-Bold
    /CGuLiGB5-Bold
    /CGuYin-Bold
    /CHei-UltraBold
    /CHei2-Bold
    /CHei2-Xbold
    /CHei2GB5-Bold
    /CHei2GB5-Xbold
    /CHei3-Bold
    /CJNgai-Bold
    /CKan-Xbold
    /CNganKai-Bold
    /CO2Yuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuen-Xbold
    /COYuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuenGB5-Xbold
    /CPo-Bold
    /CPo3-Bold
    /CSong3-Medium
    /CSu-Medium
    /CSuGB5-Medium
    /CWeiBeiGB5-Bold
    /CXLi-Medium
    /CXYaoGB5-Medium
    /CXing-Medium
    /CXingKai-Bold
    /CXingKaiGB5-Bold
    /CYuen-SemiMedium
    /CYuenGB5-Light
    /CYuenGB5-SemiBold
    /CYuenGB5-Xbold
    /DFLiYeaSong-Bd-HK-BF
    /MBei-Bold
    /MDynasty-Xbold
    /MElle-Medium
    /MHGHagoromoT-Light
    /MHGHagoromoT-Medium
    /MHGKyokashotaiT-Light
    /MHGReithicT-Light
    /MHei-Bold
    /MHei-Light
    /MHei-Medium
    /MHei-Xbold
    /MHeiGB5-Bold
    /MHeiGB5-Light
    /MHeiGB5-Medium
    /MHeiGB5-Xbold
    /MKai-Medium
    /MKai-SemiBold
    /MKaiGB5-Medium
    /MLi-Bold
    /MNgai-Bold
    /MQingHua-Xbold
    /MSung-Light
    /MSung-Medium
    /MSung-Xbold
    /MSungGB5-Light
    /MSungGB5-Medium
    /MSungGB5-Xbold
    /MYoung-Medium
    /MYoung-Xbold
    /MYuen-Light
    /MYuen-Medium
    /MYuen-Xbold
    /MYuppy-Medium
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 500
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName (http://www.color.org)
  /PDFXTrapped /Unknown

  /Description <<
    /FRA <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create PDF documents with higher image resolution for improved printing quality. The PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Reader 5.0 and later.)
    /JPN <FEFF3053306e8a2d5b9a306f30019ad889e350cf5ea6753b50cf3092542b308000200050004400460020658766f830924f5c62103059308b3068304d306b4f7f75283057307e30593002537052376642306e753b8cea3092670059279650306b4fdd306430533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103057305f00200050004400460020658766f8306f0020004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d30678868793a3067304d307e30593002>
    /DEU <>
    /PTB <>
    /DAN <>
    /NLD <>
    /ESP <>
    /SUO <>
    /ITA <>
    /NOR <>
    /SVE <>
    /KOR <FEFFd5a5c0c1b41c0020c778c1c40020d488c9c8c7440020c5bbae300020c704d5740020ace0d574c0c1b3c4c7580020c774bbf8c9c0b97c0020c0acc6a9d558c5ec00200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020b9ccb4e4b824ba740020c7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c2edc2dcc624002e0020c7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020b9ccb4e000200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe7f6e521b5efa76840020005000440046002065876863ff0c5c065305542b66f49ad8768456fe50cf52068fa87387ff0c4ee563d09ad8625353708d2891cf30028be5002000500044004600206587686353ef4ee54f7f752800200020004100630072006f00620061007400204e0e002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020548c66f49ad87248672c62535f003002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d5b9a5efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef65305542b8f039ad876845f7150cf89e367905ea6ff0c4fbf65bc63d066075217537054c18cea3002005000440046002065874ef653ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000520065006100640065007200200035002e0030002053ca66f465b07248672c4f86958b555f3002>
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


